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Company Profile

Corporate Name Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Trading As ZAMEFA
Creation Date 1968

Company Status Listed on the “Lusaka Securities Exchange”
Principal Shareholder :R;eSLiz)ert International Investments (Mauritius) Limited
Authorised Share
Capital 150,000,000

Manufacture of Copper Rod and Copper and Aluminum
Electrical Conductors

Products Low Voltage Cables (600/1000V)
Building Wire
Bare Copper Earth Wire
Flexible Cables and Wires
Aluminum Overhead Conductors

Activities

Aerial Bundle Conductors

Copper Rod

Copper Shapes
Certifications ISO 9001

ISO 14001

ISO 45001

SABS Mark

ZABS Mark

Website www.zamefa.com
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
General Company information

Metal Fabricators of Zambia plc (ZAMEFA) was incorporated in the Republic of Zambia under
the Zambian Companies Act as a public limited liability Company and is domiciled in Zambia.
ZAMEFAwasincorporatedin 1968 and privatized in 1996. The Company becamelistedonthe
Lusaka Securities Exchangein September2004.

Fabcorp (Pty) Limited was registered in 2008 and is domiciled in the republic of South Africa. It
isawhollyownedsubsidiary of Metal Fabricators of ZambiaPlc.

The principal shareholder of ZAMEFA is Reunert International Investments (Mauritius)
Limited, incorporated in Mauritius, a wholly owned subsidiary of Reunert Limited
incorporated in South Africa and listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange (JSE). Reunert
International lnvestments (Mauritius) Limited owns 75% of the total issued shares of ZAMEFA,
and the remainder is held by a broad portfolio of investors comprising local, foreign
institutionsandindividuals, includingemployeesofthe Company.

Reunert Limited has been at the forefront of the cable industry in the region for more than 60
years, supplying large volumes of cable to power and telecommunication utilities as well as
themining, agriculturalandindustrial sectors.

The Company continues to hold full certifications for ISO 9001 (quality management system)
and ISO 14001 (environmental management system). During the year under review the
Company successfully completed the reclassfication and transition from OHSAS 18001 to
ISO 45001 (occupational health and safety management system). Additionally the Company
continues to hold the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS) and Zambia Bureau of
Standards(ZABS) permitsforitsrange of low voltage powerdistribution cables.

Exports continue to be the main source of revenue for the Company. During the period under
review, exports accounted for 80% of the total sales revenue with sales to various sub-saharan
countries.
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Chairman’s statement
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Board Matters

The 2021 financial year was a good turn around for the
company from the previous few years in which losses were
recorded. The turnaround coincided with changes in the
Zambian political arena after the successful completion of the

hdial electionsin August2021.Theseamlesstransferof powertothe
winning party after the election results were published, is an
W example to the rest of the world and something on which all
p Zambians can be very proud. The new government has
" committed to a suite of business friendly macro economic
policies and the Board is looking forward to the benefits that
A&:EHE?ickson these policies may bring to the people of Zambia and the
airman

J company.

Duringthe yearthefollowing changeswere madetothe Board:
Mrs Chabala whose contract of employmentended atthe end of April 2021 resigned from the
Board on 4 May 2021 and Mrde Villiers resigned post yearend on 5 November 2021 from the
Board. Mr Bwalya was appointed on 14 September 2021 as Managing Director of the
companyand MrCorte was appointed asanon-executivedirectoron5November2021.

| wish to express my sincere thanks to both Mrs Chabala and Mr de Villiers for all their
contributions to the Board and the company during the period that they served on the Board.
Both served the companywith distinctionand we wishthem well with the nextchapteroftheir
careers.

| extend a warm welcome to both Mr Bwalya and Mr Corte as returning members of the Board.
Both of them served on the Board of directors of the company prior to Reunert International
Investments (Mauritius) becoming the majority shareholder and we are looking forward to
theircontributions.

CompanyPerformance

As mentioned earlier, thefinancial results of the 2021 financial year were muchimproved over
thoseachievedinthe prioryear. Theimprovement was mainlydueto:

theincreaseinvolumessoldinthe 2021 financialyear,

the strengthening of the kwacha against the USD in the last quarter of the current
financial year that resulted in the Group recording net foreign exchange gains for the
2021 financialyearcomparedtothe netforeignexchange lossesinthe prior year;and

- thereductioninfinance costs comparedtothe prior year mainly due to the conversion of
the long-term loan from the majority shareholderinto an equity loan bearinginterest at
0%. The restructuring of the loan was concluded during the last quarter of the prior
financial year. Despite the reduction in the current year, the finance cost for the Group
and Company still exceeded the maximum finance cost deductible for tax purposes as
definedinsection 29 ofthelncometaxactofZambia.

The cash position of the Group and Company remained in overdraft at the end of the current
financial year mainly due to the increase in working capital required by the Group and



Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Chairman’s statement
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Company as a result of the higher copper prices. In addition, the cash resources were
negatively affected by the fact that none of the overdue VAT claims that existed at the end of
the previousyearend, were settled bythe Zambia Revenue Authorityduringthe year.

ZAMEFA received recognition for its export efforts during the year. At the annual awards
ceremony of the Zambia Association of Manufacturers , ZAMEFA won the Outstanding Trade
Performance Awardforexporters.

The Covid-19 pandemic continued to impact the company and the economy in general.
ZAMEFA fully subscribed to the Covid-19 prevention regulations that were issued by
government and implemented a strict Covid-19 protocol inthe company while still fulfilling
allcustomers orders. Despite these preventative measures 15% of the employees of ZAMEFA
contracted the virus while tragically one employee died after contracting the virus. We wish to
take this opportunity to extend our condolences to the family and friends of the late Mr
JacksonZulu. Thecompany is makingeveryefforttogetas manyas possible ofitsemployees
vaccinated andthe currentvaccinationrateis 41% of ouremployees.

Our integrated management systems based on ISO 9001: 2015, 14001: 2015 and 45001:
2018 remain the pillar to ensure world class standards and responsible business practices.
This confirms our commitmentto produce quality products to meet the needs of our local and
regionalcustomers. Inaddition, ZAMEFA retained its South African Bureau of Standard (SABS)
certification on all its products, while the quality management systems and products
remained approved bytheZambian Bureau of Standards (ZABS)

Appreciation

Inthe economicenvironmentZambiafounditselfin, ouremployees again have experienced a
very challenging year and have exhibited great commitment. | would like to thank the
employees and the ZAMEFA management team for their efforts. On behalf of the Board, |
would like to thank all our customers for their support and give them our commitment that we
will continue to strive to meet their requirements in the years ahead. | would like to thank the
Board for their support, candid input and the exemplary manner in which they discharged
theirresponsibilities.




Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Managing Director’s report

Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

K.D Bwalya
Managing Director

Overview

Theyear2021 wasanotherchallengingyear, butoneinwhichwe
saw, yet again, the resilience and agility of ZAMEFA. To that
effect, | am delighted to report that despite a challenging
business environment, which continued to be impacted
negatively by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company stayed
resolute and delivered satisfactory operational performance and
a positive bottom line for the financial year ended 30 September
2021.

As the Covid-19 pandemic continued to evolve during the year,
bringing about new variants of the disease with high
transmissibility and morbidity, ZAMEFA acted quickly and
decisively to help protect our workforce from the spread of the
disease. Relying on expert advice, the Company implemented
appropriate measuresto keep our people safe, while maintaining

the security and integrity of our business operations. However, despite all the best efforts and
measures, the Company regrettably registered one Covid-19 related death during the period

underreview.

Notwithstanding the continued tight liquidity space in the Group broughtabout mainly by the
non-payment of long outstanding input VAT refunds by the Zambia Revenue Authority (ZRA),
the Group was able to post a net profit of ZMW52 million compared to a net loss of ZMW 234
million recorded in the previous financial year. One of the main drivers of the improvementin
the bottom linethisyearcomparedto prioryearisthe appreciation ofthe local currency (ZMW)
inthe fourth quarter of the currentfinancial year, resulting in exchange gains on net monetary
liabilitiesdenominatedinUS Dollars.

(i)  FinancialPerformance

Financial highlights for the Group and Company forthe yearended 30 September 2021
anditscomparativearesetoutinthetable below:

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000

Revenue 2,424,306 995,289 2,424,306 995,289
Gross profit 122,205 57,475 122,205 57,475
Profit/ (loss) before tax 65,803 (232,940) 65,413 (232,622)
Net profit/ (loss) 52,045 (234,368) 51,763  (233,974)
Non-current assets 127,442 136,954 127,442 136,905
Inventory 225,824 181,416 225,824 181,416
Other current assets 409,570 308,439 414,457 313,718
Total assets 762,836 626,809 767,723 632,039
Current liabilities 571,731 493,041 571,540 492,949
Shortterm loans and bank overdrafts 148,252 132,290 148,252 132,290
Non-current liabilities 8,366 2,978 8,308 2,978
Equity 182,739 130,790 187,875 136,112
Acid test Ratio (Times) 0.72 0.63 0.73 0.64
EBITDA 90,026 (196,688) 89,636 (196,369)
Earnings/ (loss) per share 1.92 (8.65) 1.91 (8.64)

8
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(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(ii)

Revenues

Totalrevenuesforthe yearwereZMW2 424 million, up by 1449% comparedto prioryear’s
ZMW 995 miillion. Thisincrease was primarily driven byacombination of highervolumes
delivered and a surge in metal prices. Total volumes delivered this year stood at 12 890
tons against 8 860 tons in the prior year while the average copper price rose by 47% to
USS 8466 perton this financial year when compared to the corresponding period in the
prioryear.

The average ZMW/USD exchange rate for this financial year also increased to ZMW
21.04, representinga 28% depreciation ofthe local currency againstthe average rate for
the priorfinancialyear.

Gross Profit

Thegross profit (GP) of ZMW122 millionthis yearwassignificantly higherthanlastyear,
driven by the higher revenues recorded this year, although the GP percentage
marginally declined compared to prior year due to changes in the mix and high metal
prices.

Net Profit

The net profit after tax for the financial year was ZMW52 million against the net loss of
ZMW234 million recorded lastyear. In addition to better operating results, thisyear's net
profit also benefited from the appreciation of the local currency (ZMW) in the fourth
quarter of the financial year, resulting in exchange gains on US Dollar denominated net
monetary liabilities. The finance costs were also lower this year because of the full year’s
benefitof the restructuring of the Company's longterm loan to an equity loan completed
duringthefourth quarterofthe priorfinancialyear.

Liquidity

The closing liquidity position, measured using the acid test ratio improved by 14% this
yearto0.72 from 0.63 lastyear.

Commercial

The revenue for the 2021 financial year increased by 144% compared to the previous
financial year. The normalisation of the copper cathode supply from the mines to
ZAMEFA during the year contributed to a 45% increase in volumes compared to the
previousfinancial year. The company's export market which suffered significantly in the
prior year due tothe unavailability of copper cathode rebounced by58%. The company
received recognition forthe good performance inthe export marketatthe annualawards
ceremony of the Zambia Association of Manufacturers where the “Outstanding trade
performanceforexporters”award was giventothe company.

In addition, the increase in the average copper price, in the current financial year of 47%
compared to the prior year also contributed to the higher revenue. The majority of the
company's sales are USD based and a result, the weakening of the Zambian Kwacha of
28% againstthe average Kwacha/USD rate of the priorfinancial year further contributed
totheincreased revenuein the currentfinancial year. The company further managed to
improve the product mix of the sales in the current financial year, with the cable & wire
sales with a higher added value component compared to copper rod, representing a
higher percentage of the volumes. This also contributed to the higher revenue in the
currentfinancialyear.
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(iii)

(iv)

Manufacturing/operational

In order to maintain global manufacturing excellence, the Company has sustained and
continue to reinforce the Lean Enterprise System, a key focus of which is in reducing
variationand eliminatingwasteinallouroperations.

During the year under review, some major achievements were reached in terms of raw
materials and spare parts sourcing that have produced savings benefiting the 2020-
2021 period.

Our Quality Management System based on ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 and ISO
45001:2018continuesstrongandisour pillartooperateasaworld classcompany.

ZAMEFA equally retained its South Africa Bureau of Standards (SABS) certifications for
low voltage power cables, ACSR aluminium power overhead conductors and obtained a
new SABS certification for house wire cables and Zambia Bureau of Standard
Certification (ZABS)forhousewire.

Safety continues to be our Number 1 value, and our program “Zero and Beyond” paid off
allowingZAMEFAto achieve anotheryearwithzerolosttimeinjuries.

Human Resources

Duringthe 2021 financial year, Zamefa continued the questto upliftthe staff skills levels
through investment in the TEVET education, training and development programs in
conjunction with Northern Technical College in Ndola for the Maintenance team
delivered via both onsite and virtual models. At the end of the program, the trainees
managed to successfully graduate and transfer the acquired knowledge to the specific
areasofoperationaswellas mentorotherAssociates progressively.
Asregardstoeducation, trainingand development of staff members, duringthe year, the
Company continued with the implementation of the Zamefa Work Cultural Model,
focusedonthe6 corevaluesof:

1. Working safely and caringly: the Company gives paramount attention to health,
safetyandourenvironment

2. Constantly improving and innovating: persistently seeking personal and
operationalexcellence

3. Valuingourpeople:inspiringpeopletogofurther
4. Takingownership:committedtoandaccountableforpromotingthe CBiBrand
5. Focusingoncustomers: believinginlonglastingand sustainable relationships

6. Building asense of belonging: strive for open and accessible communication and
conversation

10
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(iv) Human Resources (continued)

11
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(iv) HumanResources (continued)

Further, with regard tothe Integrated Management System Compliance and particularly
in view of the Standards’ upgrade to the ISO 45001, the Company conducted training of
new internal Auditors which initiative also closed the gap of shortfall of personnel
created byseparationsoftrained staffinthe lasttwoquarters.

Despite the ravaging Covid-19 pandemic, the Company held a 2021 Labour Day
celebration with 20 Associates being recognised in different categories of achievement
awards.

12
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(iv)

Human Resources (continued)

With the onset and escalation of the third (3°) wave of Covid-19 in the first quarter of
2021, Zamefa instituted preventative and alleviation measure to combat the pandemic
such astesting forthe virus and vaccination programs onsite for both direct Zamefa staff
and employees of contractors. This program was conducted in conjunction with the

DistrictHealth ManagementBoardin Luanshya.

13
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(iv)

Human Resources (continued)

ZAMEFA continued to innovate regarding employee relations and welfare through the
Covid-19 pandemic by advancing the tenets of Wellness and Employee Health by
conductingregularrandomtesting of employees donein collaboration with the Ministry
of Health taskforce. As part of its advocacy for justice and fairness in the employment
arena, the company conducted a number of wellness initiatives aimed at motivating its
staff to advance health and safety at the workplace. Therefore during the period under
review, working in conjunction with Ministry of Health and other stakeholders
management periodically arranged counseling, testing and practical exercises for the
staff, theirimmediate family and local community as part of the awareness campaign for
good health practicesto combatand mitigate ailments such as Hypertension, HIV/AIDS,
Malaria, Diabetes and Cervical Cancer.

As part of promoting the wellness program the Company staff continued weekly keep fit
exercisesatthe ZamefaSports Complex.
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(iv)

Human Resources (continued)

The Companyalso sponsored a 4-day Team-Building eventforits female staff to Samfya
on the shores of Lake Bangweulu where the Zamefa Ladies had an unforgettable
experience. This trip comprised a total of 25 ladies including 3 from the Zamefa Lusaka
MDC office.

15
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(iv) HumanResources (continued)

16
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(iv) HumanResources (continued)

Averageremunerationand numberofemployees

The total remuneration paid to employees during the year amounted to

ZMW43,483,000(2020:ZMW41,381,000).

Manpower Status

The Group’s man powerstatuswasasshowninthetable below:

Type of Employment
Contract — Hourly

Male
Female

Contract Hourly - total

Contract-Salaried

Male
Female

Salaried -total

Total employees

Students on attachment

Male
Female

Students on attachment - total

Total Compliment

Theaverage numberofemployeesduringthe period were asfollows:

Month

October
November
December
January
February
March

Number

286
287
288
288
288
288

17

2021

173
13

186

80

26

106

292

ul

299

Month
April

May

June

July
August
September

2020

169
12

181

86

27

113

294

ul

301

Number

291
289
289
291
291
299
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(iv)

Human Resources (continued)
Our People

KeyHuman Resource sustainability risksand opportunities

Material Risk/Opportunity Mitigating Measure

Staff The Industrial Relations atmosphere in Zamefa was | Regular feedback communication
generally calm with no disturbances recorded during | with the staff through monthly
the financial year under review. Management worked | management updates as well as
very well with the union leadership and there were | meetin gs with the works
regular consultative meetings held between the two | committee were utilised in order to

socialpartners. sustain the performance of the
: - . company in these unpredictable
Zamefa continues providing subsidized health | & ations.

services on cost-sharing basis to all employees and
their families as well as complying with the statutory
requirements for pension contributions for all its
eligible employees towards the National Pension
SchemeAuthority (NAPSA).

Corporate Membership

ZAMEFA actively participates and contributes to national organizations where our
executives holding significant positions, participate and share their knowledge in
workinggroupsand conferences planned bythese establishments. The organizationsin
whichwe hold membershipare:

(a) ZambiaAssociationof Manufacturers (ZAM)

(b) ZambiaFederation Employers(ZFE)

(c) Engineeringlnstitute of Zambia (EIZ)

(d) Zambialnstitute of Chartered Accountants (ZICA)

(e) Zambialnstitute of Marketing(ZIM)

(f)  Zambialnstitute of Human Resources Management(ZIHRM)
(g) AmericanChamberofCommerce (AMCHAN)

Our association with the above organizations provides opportunities to engage and
interactwith diverse stakeholders.

Corporate Governance

The Company recognisesits responsibility for fostering a strong ethical environment so
that its affairs are conducted according to the highest standards of personal and
corporate conduct. This responsibility is characterised and reflected in the Code of
Business Ethics and Policies, which is distributed throughout the Company and has
beensubscribed byallemployees.

The Board composition is balanced so that no one individual can dominate decision
making. The depth of experience and diversity of the Board ensures robust deliberations
on all issues of material importance to the Company. The roles of Chairman and
Managing Directorare separate. The ChairmanisaNon-Executive Directorappointed by
the Board.

18
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(vi)

(vii)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company remains committed to the principles of good corporate citizenship and
has continued in its quest to invest in structured social programs to address specific
needs of its surrounding communities in which it conducts business. Working in
partnership with local government authorities the Company considers various social
projectsonthebasisof sustainabilityand ability to benefitthe majority of residentsinthe
community.

As part of our corporate social responsibility program, we continued to render material
and financial support to charitable and non-political institutions in the district of
Luanshya. During the period under review, the Group made donations to charitable
causesinanaggregate sumof ZMW29,039 (2020:ZMW33,107).

Safety, Health, Environmentand Quality

The Group is certified to ISO 14001: 2015 (Environmental Management System) I1ISO
9001:2015 ( Quality Management System and 1SO 45001:2018 (Occupational Health
and SafetyManagementsystem).

A virtual external re-certification audit for the three (3) management system standards
and anonsite SABS product permitaudits were conducted and ZAMEFA retained ALL its
systemsand productcertificationsand permits.

Monthly, quarterly and bi- annual SHEQ Management review meetings are held to
evaluate the effectiveness and performance as well as results from six (6) Safety, Health
and Environmental committees. This has enhanced employee participation and
consultationto SHEQ policies, legaland othercompliance obligations.

Pro-active SHE tools are used daily to address unsafe behaviours and unsafe conditions
intheworkplace.

ZAMEFA currently holds 4 productquality marksfromthe Zambia Bureau standardsand
another4 product qualitymarksfromthe South African Bureau of Standards.

Future Prospects

As we look to the months and years ahead, we know we have a lot of hard work ahead of
us. Still, we can look forward to the future of a Company that is today as relevant to the
needs of the Country and the region as at any time since its founding more than half a
century ago. Our employees have shown they can succeed even in challenging
conditions. We are thus confident about the future of ZAMEFA as aresilient business, an
employer giving employees rewarding careers, and a trusted partner for our customers
andotherstakeholders.

19
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We remain prepared to continue adjusting our programmes and activities to minimise
the adverse impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the operations of the business while
safeguarding the health and well-being of our employees and other stakeholders by
complying with Government guidelines and other expert advice on the pandemic.

Gratitude

Let me end by expressing my profound gratitude to the Board for the steadfast support
and invaluable counsel it renders to management. | would also like to thank my fellow
employees forthe hard work they putinto deliver this year's performance on the back of
averychallengingenvironment. | further wish to express sincere thanksto all our valued
stakeholders, especially our customers, for their continued support and cooperation.
Last, but by no means least, | would like to thank my predecessor, Mrs R.M. Chabala, for
leadingour Companywith passion overthelast8 yearsand Mr. L.JduPlessisfor holding
thefortand steeringthe ship afterMrs. Chabala’sdeparture.

20
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in submitting to the shareholders, their report on the Group and
separate financial statements for Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc (the Company) for the year
ended 30September2021.

The Company continued to be listed on the Lusaka Securities Exchange (LUSE) and is the
holding Company for Fabcorp (Pty) Limited, a company registered in the Republic of South
Africa.

1 The Group

As at 30 September 2021, the Company had 100% direct shareholdingin Fabcorp
(Pty) Limited, whichwasdormantduringthe yearunderreview.

2 Principalactivities
The principal activities of the Company continue to be the manufacture of copper
rod and copper and aluminium electrical conductors for sale to customers in the
domestic and foreign markets. The Company also continues to sell
telecommunications cables which are sourced from within the Reunert group of
companies.

In the opinion of the Directors, all the activities of the Company substantially fall
withinthe manufacturingsector.

3 Sharecapital

Theauthorisedandissuedandfully paid share capital ofthe Group are:

2021 Number of

Authorised shares Issued Value
The Company 150,000,000 27,090,099 K270,901
Fabcorp (Pty) Limited 1,000 100 K51
As at 30 September 2021, the shareholder analysis of the Company was as

follows:
2021 2020
Reunert International Investments (Mauritius) Limited 20,317,580 20,317,580
Private Individuals/Institutions 6,772,519 6,772,519
27,090,099 27,090,099

4 Significantshareholdingofthe Company

As at 30 September 2021, shareholders with substantial shareholding (5% or
more)inthe Company’'sshare capitalwereasfollows:

ReunertInternational Investments (Mauritius) Limited
National Pensions Scheme Authority

21
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5 Going Concern

During the year, the Group made a net profit of ZMW52,045,000 (2020: loss of
ZMW234,369,000). As at year end the Groups’s net current assets exceeded its
currentliabilitiesbyZMW63,663,000 (2020: net liability ZMW 3,186,000).

The 2021 financial yearwasagoodturnaround forthe Group fromthe previous few
yearsinwhichlosseswererecorded.

The profitsrecordedinthe 2021 financialyearresulted mainly from:
theincreaseinvolumessoldinthe 2021 financial year,

the strengthening of the kwacha against the USD in the last quarter of the
current financial year which resulted in the Group recording net foreign
exchange gainsforthe 2021 financial year of ZMW44,471,000 comparedto
thenetforeignexchangelosses of ZMW200,788,000inthe prioryear;and

the reduction in finance costs compared to the prior year mainly due to the
conversion ofthe long-term loan from the majority shareholderinto an equity
loan bearing interest at 0%. The restructuring of the loan was concluded
duringthe last quarter of the prior financial year. Despite the reduction in the
current year, the finance cost for the Group and Company still exceeded the
maximum finance costdeductible fortax purposes asdefinedin section 29 of
thelncome TaxActofZambia.

The profits generated in the current financial year had a positive effect on the net
asset value of the Group, with the Group's net equity improving from ZMW130.8
milliontoZMW 182.7 million.

The cash position of the Group and Company remained in overdraft at the end of
the currentfinancial year mainly due to the increase in working capital required by
the Group and Company as a result of the higher copper prices. In addition, the
cash resources were negatively affected by the fact that none of the overdue VAT
claims that existed at the end of the previous year, were settled by the Zambia
RevenueAuthorityduringthe year.

Based on the continued support from the majority shareholder and the expected
enhanced cash flow that will arise through the settlement of the State arrears,
which will both reduce the Group and Company’s finance costs and its exposure to
currency volatility, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group and Company
willcontinuetobeagoingconcernforthe next12 months.

The table below highlights resources that were available to the Group for working
capitalfinancingasat 30September2021. (Seenote 19)

Maximum Utilised Available Amount

Bank Type of Facility USS$'000' USS'000 USS'000'
ABSA Bank Zambia Plc Bank overdraft 3,500 - 3,500
Rand Merchant Bank Limited Revolvingfacility 40,000 30,816 9,184
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Investmentsinsubsidiaries

During the year, the Company retained its 100% equity interest in Fabcorp (Pty)
Limited. The subsidiary is dormant.

Capitalexpenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure strategy and decisions continued to be focused on
minimizing and managing business risks, enhancing customer satisfaction and
enhancing future business activities. The Group spent a total of ZMW?750,000
(2020: nil)on capitalexpenditure.

Insurance

The Group has insured its operational assets against property damage and
businessinterruption. The Group also maintains Directors liabilityinsurance forits
Directors in respect of their duties as Directors of the Company. Besides the
foregoing, the Group has cover foremployer’s liability, publicand product liability,
group personal accident, group life assurance and motor vehicle. Total premiums
paidduringthe periodforthe Groupwas ZMW4,440,000 (2020:ZMW3,142,000).

Directors’ Feesand Executive ManagementRemuneration

The Group paid ZMW5,577,000 (2020: ZMW3,633,000) to Executive Managers
as remuneration and ZMW1,486,000 (2020:ZMW1,160,000) to the Independent
Non-Executive Directors as Directors’ fees. Non-Executive members of the Board
were notentitledtoanyform of retirementbenefits.

Corporate Governance

The Board recognises its responsibility for fostering a strong ethical environment
throughout the Group so that its affairs are conducted according to the highest
standards of personal and corporate conduct. This responsibility is characterised
and reflected in the Code of Business Ethics and Policies, which is distributed
throughoutthe Groupand hasbeensubscribed byallemployees.

Meetings ofdirectors

The table below sets out the number of Board meetings held by the Company
duringthe period underreview andthose attended by each Director.

. Meetings Meetings
Director held el
A.E. Dickson -Chairman 4 4
R. M. Chabala (Mrs)-Managing Director 4 2*

N. A. Thomson - Non-Executive Director 4 4
P. W. de Villiers - Executive Director 4 4
L.J. du Plessis- Executive Director 4 4
J. M. Chisanga - Independent Non-Executive Director 4 4
C. Kabaghe - Independent Non-Executive Director 4 4

* Resigned on 30 April 2021
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141

14.2

14.2.1

Compliance

The Directors confirm that the Company is not in violation of any laws and
regulations that would have a material adverse effect on the operation of the
business andthatthe Company has obtained all materiallicences and permitsthat
arenecessarytoenableittocarryoutitsbusiness.

Post Balance Sheet events

The Directors are not aware of any material facts, circumstances or events which
occurred betweenthe date of the statementoffinancial position and the date of this
report, which mightinfluencean assessmentofthe Company’sfinancial position or
theresultsofitsoperation.

TheBoard

Membership

The membershipofthe Boardasat30September2021 wasasfollows;
Non-Executive Directors

A.E.Dickson-Chairman
N.A.Thomson
P W.deVilliers

Independent Non-Executive Directors

J.M.Chisanga
C.Kabaghe

Executive Directors

K.D.Bwalya (Appointed 14 September2021)
L.J.duPlessis

Board Governance

Overview

The Articles of Association of the Company provide fora Board of 8 members. As at
30th September 2021, the Board comprised of five non-executive Directors
(including the Chairman). Two of the non-executive Directors are independent
Directors. The Board has two executive Directors, composed of the Managing
Directorandthe Commercial Director.

The Board has a Charter which clearly establishesits role and responsibilities. The
primary role of the Board is to provide strategic guidance to the Company and
effective oversight of management and Company performance. To assist in the
performance of its role, the Board has established a number of Committees which
have specificrolesandresponsibilitiesinkeyareas.
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14.2.2

14.2.2.1

14.2.2.2

14.2.2.3

14.2.2.4

TheBoard (continued)
Board Governance (continued)
Overview (continued)

Board meetings are held quarterly while Audit and Risk Committee meetings are
held three times a year with special or additional meetings held as necessary. The
remunerationsand nominations committee holds its meetingtwice a year. Briefing
materialis provided to each director at least seven days prior to each meeting. The
Company Secretary is responsible for coordinating the timely completion and
despatch of Board meetingagendas and briefing material, and ensuring that Board
procedures and applicable laws on Board functions are complied with. The
Company Secretaryalsoadvisesthe Board ongovernanceissues.

During the year, the newly established Board, accepted the following board
charter:

Board Charter
Introduction

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc (“the
Company”) primarily derives its authority in respect of and responsibilities and
dutiestothe Companyfrom:

the CompaniesAct,2017(no100f2017)("the CompanyAct")
the LuSE Listings Requirements

the Company'sMemorandumandArticles of Association
theZambianCommon law

Purpose

The purpose of this charter is to amplify certain aspects of the Board’s duties and
responsibilities. The charter does not provide a list of such duties or
responsibilities nor does it replace any applicable requirement or prescription in
the Companies Act, the LUSE Listings Requirements, the Memorandum and
Articles of Association orotherapplicableZambian law.

Chartertoform partofappointmentterms

Thischarter,asamended fromtimetotime, forms partofeach Director’s conditions
ofappointmentasaDirector.

Integrity and reputation

Each of the Board members recognises that their professional and personal
reputation hasadirectand materialimpactontheirinvolvementwiththe Company.
Therefore, each of the Directors undertakes to conduct themselves, both
professionally and personally, with integrity, in accordance with the ethics and
valuesofthe Companyandthe Lawsof Zambia.

Each of the Directors will conduct themselves at all times with due regard to the
reputationandinterests ofthe Company.
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14.2
14.2.2
14.2.2.5

14.2.2.6

14.2.2.7

14.2.2.8

TheBoard (continued)

Board Governance (continued)

Board Charter(continued)

The LusakaSecuritiesand Exchange (LUSE)

Unlessindicated otherwise, the Board considersitself bound to andis responsible
for the implementation of the LUSE corporate governance code. The duties and
responsibilities of the Board, its Committees and the Company secretary, as
contemplated in the LUSE corporate governance code, apply to the Board (unless
indicated otherwise) and, although not repeated in this charter, are binding on the
Boardanditsindividualmembers.

The Board is responsible to publish a report, at least annually, on the Company’s
compliance status ofthe LUSE corporate governance code.

Sustainability

In additiontoits fiduciary duties, the Board recognises its responsibility to conduct
and growthe Companyanditsinterestsinasustainable manner, with dueregardto
allstakeholders.

Composition of the Board

In addition to applicable legislation and the Memorandum and Articles of
Association, the Board should have the appropriate balance of knowledge, skills,
experience, diversity and independence foritto discharge its governance role and
responsibilities objectivelyand effectively.

Retirement from the Board

At the annual general meetings of the Company, the non- executive directors will
retire from the Board by rotation. At all annual general meetings held by the
Company, one third of the non - executive directors or, if one third is not a whole
number,thenextlargestnumberthanonethird, shallretire fromoffice.

The non- executive directors who retire by rotation shall be those who have been
longestin office, but, as betweenthose whowere appointed onthe same day, those
toretire (unlesstheyagree otherwiseamongthemselves) bedetermined by lot.

The Company may, at a meeting at which a Director retires by rotation, appoint a
persontofill office byordinaryresolution.

A retiring non - executive director is eligible for re-appointment. As provided for in
section 101 (4) of the Companies Act, an executive director shall not, while holding
thatoffice, be subjecttoretirementbyrotation.

Executive Directors will retire from the Board no later than the shareholders’
meeting after that executive director reaches the age of 65 and will thereafter only
be eligible for election to the Board as non-executive director. The Board may
extend the retirement age for executive directors in individual instances up to no
more than 70 years of age if it believes such extension to be in the best interest of
the Company.
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14.2
14.2.2
14.2.2.9

TheBoard (continued)

Board Governance (continued)
Board Charter(continued)
Interactionwith Shareholders

The Board must deliberate all matters that require shareholder approval before it
refers these matters to shareholders for decision making. Where appropriate the
Board may make recommendations to shareholders. The Board will provide
material and accurate information to shareholders on matters to be considered by
shareholders.

The Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the audit & risk committee, the
Chairman of the remuneration & nomination committee and all executive directors
will be required to attend shareholders’ meetings. Other directors must make
themselves available to attend any shareholders’ meetings and to answer
questions posed by shareholders when requested to do so by the Chairman of the
Board.

No director may interact with shareholders or the media in relation to any
reputational or price sensitive matter affecting the Company, without prior
approval by the Company’s Chairman, or in his absence the General Manager:
AfricaOperations.

14.2.2.10 Board Committeesand Management

The Board is assisted in the governance of the Company by Board committees,
executivemanagementandisadvised bythe companysecretary.

The Board monitors and evaluates the performance of the committees and
individuals that either advise the board, or that exercise any delegated function or
authorityon behalfofthe Board. Inthisregard:

The Chairman of each Board committee is obliged to report to the Board on
thatcommittee’s activities.

The minutesofallcommittee meetings are provided tothe Board fornoting.

The committeesare obligedtoreporttothe Board on pertinentfindingsofany
evaluation conductedinrespectofthe performance of such Committee.

The Board is entitled to withdraw or amend its mandate to any committee or
individualatanytimethatthe Boarddeemsitappropriate.

The Board may, as and when it deems appropriate, conduct evaluations of the
performance and effectiveness of any Board Committee or any one or more of the
members of aBoard Committee.

14.2.2.10.1 AnnualAssessment

The Board and each Board committee are obliged to perform an annual
assessmentoftheir performance and effectiveness and to reportthe results of this
assessment to the board. Unless the Board instructs otherwise, the assessment
willbe conducted through aself-assessmentprocess.
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14.2 Board Governance (continued)

14.2.2  BoardCharter(continued)

14.2.2.10 Board Committeesand Management (continued)
14.2.2.10.1 AnnualAssessment(continued)

The Chairman of the Board and the company secretary are subject to annual
evaluations. The Board may, asand whenitdeemsappropriate, conductadditional
evaluations of the performance and effectiveness of the Board, any Board
committee or any one or more of the members of the Board or any Board
committee.

14.2.2.10.2 Board Committees

The extenttowhich each committee exercises delegated authority and advisesthe
Board is set outin that committee’s terms of reference, relevant Board resolutions
and legislation (to the extent applicable). The relevant administrative framework
for each committee is contained in paragraphs 14.2.2.11.2 and 14.2.2.11.3, the
relevant Board committee’s terms of reference and applicable legislation (to the
extentapplicable).

Thefollowingare standing Committees of the Board:
AuditgRiskCommittee
Remuneration & Nomination Committee
14.2.2.10.3 Reviewof Board Committee’s Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of any Board committee may be reviewed by that Board
committeeatanytimeonrequestbyanyofitsmembers.

The terms of reference of all Board committees must be reviewed by these
committeesatleastannually, calculated with reference tothe date thatthe terms of
referencewerelastapproved bythe Board.

Any amendment to the terms of reference that a Board committee deems
appropriate will be recommended to the Board for consideration and approval, if
the Board supportssuchamendment.

14.2.2.10.4 OtherCommittees

The Executive Committee, although nota Board committee, also assistsand advise
the Board.

The Board may appoint additional standing or ad hoc Board or non-Board
committeestotheextentthatitdeemsappropriate.
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TheBoard (continued)
Board Governance (continued)

Board Charter (continued)

14.2.2.10 Board Committees and Management(continued)

14.2.2.10.5 Delegationofauthority

14.2.2.11

The Boardissuesand annually reviews a formal delegation of authority document,
which contains guidance to executive management and committees on particular
aspects and levels of delegated authority in respect of transactions and the extent
towhich such authorityissubjecttoconsultationandinformation requirements.

Administrationand Meetings

14.2.2.11.1 Frequency

The Board meets at least four times a year. Ad hoc meetings will be arranged in
accordancewiththerequirements ofthe Memorandumand Articles of Association.

Electronic attendance by way of video conference or telephone conference
(provided the media employedis enabling each attendee to participate effectively
in the meeting) will be regarded as attendance in person. For the avoidance of
doubt, the Chairman maychairthe meetingelectronically.

14.2.2.11.2 Boardand Board Committees: Annualworkplan

The Board and each of the standing Board committees will agree an annual work
plan for the manner in which and the proposed timing of the carrying out of its
functions. This plan willinform the number, timing, agenda and length of Board or
Board committee meetings, as the case may be. This work plan must be reviewed
annually, but may be revised at any time when the Board or the relevant Board
committeedeemsitappropriate.

14.2.2.11.3 BoardandBoard Committees: Agenda, packsand minutes

The Chairman of the Board, with the assistance of the General Manager: Africa
Operations and the company secretary, will prepare an agenda for each Board
meeting.

Board packs shall be circulated to directors and any invitees to the meeting at least
fiveworkingdays priortoeach meeting.

The Zamefa Company Secretary shall be the secretary of the Board and the Board
Committees.

The minutes of a Board and Board committee meetingshall:

Be completed as soon as possible after the meeting and circulated to the
Chairman of the Board orthe Board committee, asthe case may be, forreview
andcomment.

The minutes must be formally considered and approved, subject to
amendment as required, by the Board or the Board committee, as the case
may be, atits nextscheduled meeting.
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TheBoard (continued)
Board Governance (continued)

Board Charter (continued)

14.2.2.12 Rightsofindividual Directors

Typically the interests of the Company are best served if the Board functions as a
team. However, any Director may request a meeting with the Chairman of the
Board.

Any Director may, after consultation with the Chairman of the Board, obtain such
external professional advice, at the expense of the Company, as is reasonably
necessary for such Director or group of Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company.

Any Director may requestthe General Manager: Africa Operationsto arrange such
trainingorinformation sessionsasisreasonablynecessaryforsuch Directororany
grouporDirectorstodischargeitsdutiestothe Company.

14.2.2.13 Dealinginthe Securities ofthe Company

In terms of the LUSE Listings Requirements, the Company is required to notify the
LuSE when any Director deals in the Company’s securities. Directors will provide
the assistance and information required by the Company to comply with this
requirement.

All senior executives of the Company must obtain permission from the Company’s
GeneralManager: AfricaOperations beforedealinginthe Company’s securities.

All Directors of the Company, other than the Chairman of the Board, must obtain
written permission from the Chairman of the Board before dealing in the
Company’s securities. The Company Secretary must be notified, in writing, on
conclusionofanysecuritiesdealings.

The Chairman of the Board must obtain written permission from the General
Manager: Africa Operations, in consultation with the Chairman ofthe remuneration
committee, before dealing in the Company’s securities. The Company Secretary
mustbe notified, inwriting, on conclusion of any securitiesdealings.

Notwithstanding the above, no Director who is aware of unpublished price-
sensitiveinformation oranyimmediate family memberof such Directormaydealin
the Company'ssecurities.

14.2.2.14 ApprovalofthisCharter

Thischarterwasreviewed, updatedand approved bythe Boardon 11 May2021.
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Corporate Governance statement

The table below shows the composition of Board Committees as at 30th
September2021.

Board Committees
Members

J.M.Chisanga (Chairperson)
A.E.Dickson

N.A.Thomson
R.M.Chabala(resignedon4May2021)

Responsibilities/functions

The Committee provides oversight on the effectiveness of the Company’s
operationaland financial reporting systems and accuracy of information, and sees
that the Company’s published Financial Statements represent a true and fair
reflection of the results of its operations and its financial numbers and cash flows
for the year then ending. The Committee is responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies, controls and compliance procedures arein place
in the Company and that compliance management and other internal control
activities are operating effectively. The committe reviews the Company’s going
concern statement and its solvency and liquidity position and makes
recommendationstothe Board asappropriate.

Members

A.E.Dickson (Chairman)
C.Kabaghe
P.W.deVilliers

Responsibilities/functions

Provides strategic guidance and oversight of/over people’s management in the
Company and is responsible for formulating remuneration policies and principles
that promote the success of the Company; for management appointments,
organisation structure, reviewing arrangements for succession planning and
managementdevelopment,anddeterminingthe remuneration ofemployees.
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Thetable below shows attendance of each Directorand alternate Director at Board
and Committee meetings heldduringtheyear.

A.E. Dickson - Chairman 4 3 2
K. D. Bwalya -Managing Director o 0**+* O*+*
R. M. Chabala (Mrs)-Managing Director P clalelal I R 0
N.A. Thomson - Non-Executive Director 4 3 0
L. A. Corte - Non-Executive Director Qx| Qrox 0
P.W. de Villiers - Executive Director JFe] 0 1
L.J. du plessis - Executive Director 4 0 0
J. M. Chisanga - Independent Non-Executive Director | 4 3 0
C. Kabaghe - Independent Non-Executive Director 4 0 2

* The remuneration committee is scheduled to meet twice a year.
** The Audit and risk committee is scheduled to meet three times per year.
*** K.D Bwalya was appointed as Managing Director on 14 September, 2021.
*% R.M Chabala resigned from the Board on 4 May, 2021.
w0k | A Corte was appointed to the Board on 5 November, 2021.

week PW.de Villiers resigned from the Board on 5 November, 2021.
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16 Zamefa's Compliancestatus of Corporate governancerules

Areview of ZAMEFA’s compliance with the LuSE Corporate Governance Code as at
30 September 2021, showed that full compliance rate was at 100%. The summary
ofthecompliance statusisshowninthetable below.

o IIII

Non applicable
to ZAMEFA

Total Rules
Applicable to
ZAMEFA

Full compliance
Partial
compliance
Non compliance

General matters 15 15 - 15 - - - 100% 0% 0%
Chairman & CEO - - - 100% 0% 0%
Executive & NED's 100% 0% 0%
Directors compensation = = - 100% 0% 0%
100% 0% 0%
- - - 100% 0% 0%
- 100% 0% 0%
Company Secretary - 100% 0% 0%
Board Committees 10 10 - 10 - - - 100% 0% 0%

Share & share dealings
Board meetings

Board evaluations

A PN DM O MG
A 2, DN MO MG
A 2, DN MO DMWG

Legal & compliance 2 2 = 2 - - - 100% 0% 0%
External audit 6 6 - 6 = = - 100% 0% 0%
Internal audit 12 12 - 12 - - - 100% 0% 0%
Risk 7 7 - 7 - - - 100% 0% 0%
Integrated sustainability reporting 7 7 - 7 - - - 100% 0% 0%
Disclosure & stakeholder reporting 4 4 - 4 - - - 100% 0% 0%
Organisation integrity 6 6 = 6 = = - 100% 0% 0%

100 100 - 100 = - - 100% 0% 0%

17 Auditors

The Company’s auditors, Messrs Deloitte & Touche, have indicated their
willingnessto continuein office. Therefore, in accordance with the Companies Act,
a resolution for their reappointment will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting.

Byorderofthe Board
S

BDOZambiaLimited
CompanySecretary
Lusaka
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Directors'responsibilitiesin respectofthe preparation of financial statements

The Companies Act, 2017 requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial yearthatgive atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as atthe end of
the financial yearand of its financial performance. It also requires the Directors to ensure that
the Company keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the
financial position of the Company. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company. The Directors are further required to ensure the Company adhere to the
corporate governance principles or practices contained in Part VII's Sections 82 to 122 of the
CompaniesAct,2017.

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable estimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
CompaniesAct, 2017 and the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that
may berelied uponinthe preparation of financial statements, and for such internal controls as
the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. In addition, the Directors are
responsibleforpreparingthe Directors'report.

The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements set out on pages 41 to 89 give a
true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Company and of its financial
performanceinaccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the Companies
Act, 2017 and the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Directors further report that
they have implemented and further adhered to the corporate governance principles or
practices containedinPartVIl,Sections82to 122 ofthe CompaniesAct,2017.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concernand have noreasonto believe thatthe business will notbe a going concernforat least
twelve (12) monthsfromthe date ofthis statement.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly
presentedinaccordancewiththeapplicablefinancialreportingframeworkdescribed above.

Approvalofthefinancial statements

Thefinancial statements of the Group and Company, setouton pages 41 to 89 were approved
bythe Board of Directorson 21 January 2022 and signed onits behalfby:

2
Director Director
21January 2022 21January 2022
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

Tothe membersof
Metal FabricatorsofZambiaPlc

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separatefinancial statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Metal Fabricators of
Zambia Plc (the "Company") and its subsidiary (together, the "Group") set out on pages 41 to
89, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 30
September 2021, and the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and
the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows forthe yearthen ended, and notesto
the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant
accountingpolicies.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated and separate financial position of the Group and Company as at 30
September 2021, and of their consolidated and separate financial performance and
consolidated and separate cash flowsforthe yearthenendedinaccordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and in the manner required by the Companies Act,
2017 andthe Securitiesand Exchange Commission.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
forthe Audit of the consolidated and separate Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA Code)”) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of
financial statements in Zambia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opiniononthese matters.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Valuation and existence of inventory ( Group and Company)

The Group as noted in Note 15 to
the financial statements had
inventory amounting to ZMW226
million as at the yearend.

The Company's valuation of metal
inventory is done in excel
spreadsheets which are prone to
human error and the determination
of quantities is subject to
judgement. Further, the main raw
material copper is highly
marketable and is susceptible to
theft.

Consequently, we considered the
valuation and existence of
inventory a key audit matter.

In considering the valuation and existence of
inventory, various procedures were performed
including, but not limited to the following:

We assessed the design and evaluated the
implementation and operating effectiveness of
the controls around the valuation of inventory;

We attended the year end stock count where a
100% physical count was conducted. We
reconciled the counted inventory to the final
valuation worksheet and investigated any book to
physical count adjustments;

We assessed the appropriateness of the
inventory values by considering the cost of the
raw materials used, standard quantities applied in
manufacturing a product, and the reasonableness
of the overheads allocated to the product;

We recalculated the weighted average unit cost
on a sample of selected inventory items; and

With the help of our IT audit specialists, we tested
the General IT Controls around MIDAS system.
This is the system where standard parameters for
the make up of cables used in the valuation of
cables are stored. We investigated the changes
noted in the standard parameters from prior year
as applicable.

Based on the work done, inventory existed at the
yearend and is appropriately valued.
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Key audit matters (continued)

(Group and Company)

Valuation of expected credit losses (ECL) on trade and other receivables

As includedin note 16, the ECL on
trade and other receivables
amounting to ZMW64 million
(2020:ZMW48 million) has been
considered to be an area where the
most significantjudgements were
required asitincorporates forward
looking information into the ECL
model prepared by management.

Related disclosures in the financial
statements include the following:

a) Provision for expected credit
losses of trade receivables section
of the significant accounting
judgements and estimates;

b) Trade and other receivables
accounting policy; and

c) Note -16 - Trade and other
receivables.

We performed various procedures, including the
following;

+ Evaluated the design and implementation and
operating effectiveness of the controls around the
valuation of expected credit losses on trade
receivables;

» We performed procedures in order to assist our
understanding of the methodology applied by
managementin their IFRS 9 model;

+ Verified whetherthe ECL model developed by
management is consistent with the requirements
of IFRS 9;

+ Tested the accuracy and completeness of
underlying data used in the model and the
arithmetical accuracy of the computation of ECL;

+ Tested the key assumptions and judgements
such asthose used to calculate the likelihood of
defaultand loss on default by comparing to
historical data. We also considered the
appropriateness of forward looking factors
(macroeconomic factors) used to determine
expected credit losses; and

« We assessed the disclosuresinthe annual
financial statements relating to the expected
credit losses on trade receivables in terms of the
disclosure requirements of IFRS 9: Financial
Instruments and IFRS 7: Financial Instruments
disclosures.

Based on the work done, the valuation of ECL is
appropriate.
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Otherinformation

The Directors are responsible for the otherinformation. The other information comprises the
Chairman's statement, Managing Director's report, Directors’ Report as required by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Companies Act, 2017 and the statement of
Directors’ responsibilities which we obtained prior to the date of this audit report. The other
information does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not and will not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based onthe work we have performed on the otherinformation obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
and separate financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2017 and the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
toenablethe preparation of consolidated and separate financial statementsthatare free from
material misstatement, whetherduetofraudorerror.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accountingunlessthe Directors eitherintend to liquidate the Group and/or the company or
toceaseoperations, orhave norealisticalternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and
separate financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whetherdueto
fraud orerror,and toissue an auditor’s reportthatincludes ouropinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statements (continued)

As partofan auditin accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professionalscepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentionalomissions, misrepresentations, orthe override ofinternal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
proceduresthatare appropriateinthe circumstances, but notforthe purpose of expressing
anopinionontheeffectivenessofthe Group'sand Company’sinternal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accountingestimatesand related disclosures made bythe Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significantdoubt on the Group'sand the
Company'sabilityto continue asagoingconcern. If we conclude thata material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
and/or Companytoceasetocontinueasagoingconcern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and
separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. Weremainsolelyresponsibleforourauditopinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, amongstother matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internalcontrolthatweidentifyduringouraudit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions takentoeliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the

39



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statements (continued)

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor'sreportunless law orregulation precludes publicdisclosure aboutthe matterorwhen,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweighthe publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal andregulatory requirements

Sections 250(2)and 259 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 require thatin carrying outour audit,
we considerandreportonwhether:

« There is a relationship, interest or debt which we as the Company's auditors, have in the
Group;

« There are serious breaches by the Company's Directors of the corporate governance
principles or practices contained in part VIl sections 82to 112 of the Companies Act, 2017;
and

« There were omission in the financial statements as regards particulars of loans made to a
Company officer (a Director, Company secretary or executive officer of a Company) during

theyear,andifreasonably possible, disclose suchinformationinouropinion.

Rule 18 of the Securities (accounting and financial reporting requirements) Rules of the
Securities ActofZambiarequiresthatwe reportonwhether:

« Theannualfinancial statements of the Group have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Securitiesand Exchange Commissionrules:

« The Group has, throughout the financial year, kept proper accounting records in
accordancewiththerequirements of the Securitiesand Exchange Commissionrules;

« The statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in
agreementwiththe Group'saccountingrecords;and

« Wehaveobtainedalltheinformation and explanations which, tothe best of our knowledge
andbelief, are necessaryforthe purposesofouraudit.

Inrespectoftheforegoingrequirements, we have noreportable matters.

CN -

J_) cloute & (ouele ¢

Deloitte & Touche Alice Jere Tembo
Chartered Accountants Audit Partner

PC No.: AUD/F000433

Date: 25 January 2022
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc

Consolidated and Separate Financial statements

Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Statementsof profitorlossand othercomprehensiveincome

Revenue 6

Costof sales

Gross profit
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Operatingincome 7
Finance costs 9
Interestincome 9

Net foreign exchange gains /(losses)

Profit/ (loss) before income tax

Taxation 10

Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive loss

items that will be reclassified
subsequently to the profit and loss

Exchange difference on translation
of foreign operation

Total other comprehensive
loss for the year

Total comprehensive income/ (loss)
forthe year

Earnings/(loss) per share

Group Company
Yearended Yearended Year ended Year ended
NOTES 30/09/2021 30/09/2020 30/09/2021 30/09/2020
K*‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K*‘000
2,424,306 995,289 2,424,306 995,289
(2,302,101)  (937,814)  (2,302,101) (937,814)
122,205 57,475 122,205 57,475
(45,880) (26,661 (45,880) (26,661)
(33,414) (29,358) (33,365) (29,321)
42911 1,456 42,960 1,493
(21,580) (33,609 (21,580) (33,609
1 1 1 1
44,471 (200,788 44,032 (200,507)
65,803  (232,940) 65,413 (232,622)
(13,758) (1,428) (13,650) (1,352)
52,045 (234,368) 51,763 (233,974)
(96) (1,180) - -
(96) (1,180) - -
51,949 (235,548) 51,763 (233,974)
1.92 (8.65) 1.91 (8.64)

Basic and diluted (Kwacha per share) 11
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc

Consolidated and Separate Financial statements

As at 30 September 2021

Statementsof financialposition

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plantand equipment
Deferred tax asset

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Equity loan

Revaluation surplus

Holding company Share based option reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve

Accumulated losses

Total equity

Non current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Share based options
Retirement benefit obligation
Total non current liabilities
Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Contract liabilities, trade and other payables
Retirement benefit obligation
Share based options

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

NOTES

13
24

15
16
17

20
19
21
22

24
22
25

19
18
25
22

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000
127,442 129,336 127,442 129,336
- 7,618 - 7,569
127,442 136,954 127,442 136,905
225,824 181,416 225,824 181,416
368,469 280,678 376,040 287,980
41,101 27,761 38,417 25,738
635,394 489,855 640,281 495,134
762,836 626,809 767,723 632,039
271 271 271 271
365,000 365,000 365,000 365,000
112,188 112,188 112,188 112,188
208 208 208 208
(1,275) (1,179) - -
(293,653) (345,698)  (289,792) (341,555)
182,739 130,790 187,875 136,112
6,139 - 6,081 -
- 404 - 404
2,227 2,574 2,227 2,574
8,366 2,978 8,308 2,978
148,252 132,290 148,252 132,290
418,550 355,661 418,359 355,569
4,929 4,272 4,929 4,272
- 818 ) 818
571,731 493,041 571,540 492,949
580,097 496,019 579,848 495,927
762,836 626,809 767,723 632,039

Thefinancial statements on pages 41 to 89 were approved forissue by the Board of Directors

on21 January2022andsignedonits behalf by:

Director < h

42

-

3=

Director



Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Statements of changes in equity

Company

Revaluation

Share
based

option Accumulated

Share capital reserve reserve losses Total
K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000
Year ended 30 September 2020
At start of the year as previously stated 271 112,188 208 (107,581) 5,086
Loss for the year - - - (233,974) (233,974)
Equity loan (Note 19) 365,000 - - - 365,000
Atend of the year 365,271 112,188 208 (341,555) 136,112
Year ended 30 September 2021
At start of the year as previously stated 365,271 112,188 208 (341,555) 136,112
Profit for the year - - - 51,763 51,763
At end of the year 365,271 112,188 208 (289,792) 187,875
Group
Share Foreign
based currency
Share Revaluation option Accumulated translation
capital reserve reserve losses reserve Total
K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000
Year ended 30 September 2020
At start of the year as restated 271 112,188 208 (111,330) 1 1,338
Loss forthe year - - - (234,368) - (234,368)
Equity Loan (Note 19) 365,000 - - - - 365,000
Foreign currency translation difference - - - - (1,180)  (1,180)
Atend of the year 365,271 112,188 208 (345,698) (1,179) 130,790
Year ended 30 September 2021
At start of the year 365,271 112,188 208 (345,698) (1,179) 130,790
Profit for the year - - - 52,045 - 52,045
Foreign currency translation difference - - - - (96) (96)
At end of the year 365,271 112,188 208 (293,653) (1,275) 182,739
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Statements of cash flows

Group Company
Year-ended Year-ended  Year-ended  Year-ended
Notes 30/09/2021 30/09/2020 30/09/2021 30/09/2020
K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 19,707 46,421 19,046 46,480
Interest received 9 1 1 1 1
Interest paid 9 (21,580) (33,609) (21,580) (33,609)
Income tax paid 10 - (1) - (1)
Net cash (used by)/ generated from
operating activities (1,872) 12,812 (2,533) 12,871
Purchase of property, plantand equipment 13 (750) - (750) -
Net cash used in investing activities (750) - (750) -
Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash used by financing activities - - - -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash (2,622) 12,812 (3,283) 12,871
and cash equivalents
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At start of the year (104,529) (117,341) (106,552) (119,423)
Effects of exchange rates movements (28,742) (59,908 (28,742) (59,908
Movementin cash and cash equivalents 26,120 72,720 25,459 72,779
Atend of the year 17 (107,151)  (104,529)  (109,835) (106,552)
Comprising of:
Cash and bank balances 41,101 27,761 38,417 25,738
Bank overdraft (148,252)  (132,290)  (148,252) (132,290)
Net cash and cash equivalents (107,151)  (104,529) (109,835) (106,552)
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notes to the financial statements

1.

2.1

Reporting Entity

Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc (ZAMEFA)isa Public Companyincorporatedin the
Republic of Zambia. The address of its registered office and principal place of
business is disclosed on page 1. These group financial statements comprise the
Company and it's subsidiary, Fabcorp (Pty) Limited, formerly called Zamefa Metal
Fabricators of South Africa (Pty) Limited. The principal activities of the Group are
disclosedinthereportofthe Directorson page 21.

Adoptionofnewandrevised Standards
Newandamended Standardsthatare effectiveforthe currentyear

Impactoftheinitialapplication of othernewand amended IFRS Standards thatare
effectiveforthe currentyear

In the current year, the Group has applied the below amendments to IFRS
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Board that are effective foran annual
period that begins on or after 1 January 2020. Their adoption has not had any
material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial
statements.

Amendments to References to the | The Group has adopted the amendments included in
Conceptual Framework in IFRS | Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
Standards

IFRS Standards for the first time in the current year. The
amendments include consequential amendments to affected
Standards so that they refer to the new Framework. Not all
amendments, however, update those pronouncements with
regard to references to and quotes from the Framework so that
they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Some
pronouncements are only updated to indicate which version of
the Framework they are referencing to (the IASC Framework
adopted bythelASBin 2001, the IASB Framework of 2010, orthe
new revised Framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions in
the Standard have not been updated with the new definitions
developedintherevised Conceptual Framework.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a | The Group has adopted the amendments to IFRS 3 for the first
business

time in the current year. The amendments clarify that while
business usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an
integrated set of activties and assets to qualify as a business. To
be considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets
mustinclude, ata minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

The amendments removes the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine
whetherasubstantive processhasbeenacquired.
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Adoptionofnewandrevised Standards (continued)

Newand amended Standardsthatare effective forthe currentyear (continued)

Impact of the initial application of other new and amended IFRS Standards that are effective
forthe currentyear(continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a | The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that
business (continued) permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentrationtest, theacquired setofactivtiesand assetsis nota
business. Underthe optional concentration test, the acquired set
of activities and assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable assets or group of similar assets. The amendments
are applied prospectively to all business combinations and
assets acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 | TheGrouphasadoptedtheamendmentstolAS1andIAS8forthe
Definition of material first time in the current year. The amendments make the
definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS
Standards. The concept of ‘obscuring’ material information with
immaterial information has been included as part of the new
definition. The threshold for materiality influencing users has
been changed from ‘could influence’ to ‘could reasonably be
expected to influence’. The definition of material in IAS 8 has
beenreplaced byareferencetothedefinition of materialinIAS

In addition, the IASB amended other Standards and the
Conceptual Framework that contain a definition of ‘material’ or
refertotheterm ‘material’toensure consistency.

2.2 Newandrevised Standardsinissue butnotyeteffective

Atthe date ofauthorisation ofthesefinancial statements, the Group has notapplied
thefollowingnewandrevised IFRS Standardsthathave beenissued butare notyet
effective.

IFRS10andIAS 28 (amendments) SaleorContribution of Assets betweenan
Investorand its Associate or Joint Venture

AmendmentstolAS1 Classification of Liabilities as Currentor Non-
current

AmmendmentstolFRS3 Referencetothe Conceptual Framework

AmendmentstolAS 16 Property, Plantand Equipment-Proceeds
beforeIntended Use

AmendmentstolAS 37 Onerous Contracts—Costof Fulfillinga
Contract

Annuallmprovementsto AmendmentstoIFRS 1 First-time Adoption of

International Financial Reporting

IFRS Standards2018-2020Cycle Standards, IFRS 9 Financiallnstrumentsand
IFRS16Leases

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will
haveamaterialimpactonthefinancial statements ofthe Groupinfuture periods.
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notestothefinancial statements (continued)

3

(2)

(b)

Summary of significantaccounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
yearspresented, unlessotherwise stated.

Statementofcompliance

The Group and separate financial statements are prepared in compliance with
International Financial ReportingStandards (IFRS).

Basisof preparation

Thefinancial statements have been prepared onthe historical cost basis exceptfor
certain properties and financial instruments that are subsequently measured at
revaluedamountsorfairvalues, asexplainedintheaccountingpolicies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchangeforassets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants atthe measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
anothervaluationtechnique. In estimating the fairvalue ofan assetoralliability, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants wouldtakethose characteristicsintoaccountwhen pricingthe asset of
liability atthe measurementdate.

Fair value for the measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactionsthatare withinthe scope of IFRS 2, leasingtransactions thatare within
the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
butarenotfairvalue,suchasnetrealisablevalueinlAS 2orvalueinusein|AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurementinitsentirety, which aredescribed asfollows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assetsorliabilitiesthattheentitycanaccessatthe measurementdate;

Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observablefortheassetorliability, eitherdirectlyorindirectly;and

Level3inputsareunobservableinputsfortheassetorliability.

The financial statements are presented in Zambian Kwacha (K), rounded to the
nearestthousand.
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notestothefinancial statements (continued)

3
(b)

(c)

Summaryofsignificantaccounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
estimatesandassumptions. Italsorequiresmanagementtoexerciseitsjudgement
inthe process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates
aresignificanttothefinancial statementsaredisclosedinnote5.

The Group and Company made a profit/ (loss) after tax of ZMW52,045,000 (2020:
ZMW?234,368,000) and ZMW51,763,000 (2020: ZMW233,974,000)
respectively during the year ended 30 September 2021, mainly due to unrealised
foreign exchange gains of ZMW44,471,000 which resulted from the re-
measurementofthe Group’s netforeign currencydenominated liabilitiesduetothe
appreciation of the Zambian Kwacha againstthe US dollar during the year. As at 30
September 2021, the Group’s residual equity amounted to ZMW182,739,000
(2020:ZMW130,790,000).

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies
applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to
finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary
courseofbusiness.

The ability of the Groupto continue asa goingconcernisdependentonanumberof
factors. The most significant of these being the ability of the Group to continue to
generate operational profits higher than the financing costs. This will be achieved
through the Group continuingto maintain normal operating levels achieved during
the 2021 financial year. Further, the Group continues to have access to funding for
the ongoing operations of the Company from RMB due to the parent guarantees
provided by the Group's ultimate controlling shareholders, Reunert Limited. The
holding Company further confirmed its continued undertaking and ability to
provide financial support in the forth coming financial year by continuing to
guarantee the Groups bank lines of creditand credit facilities with suppliers as and
when required, thereby enabling there Group to settle its obligations as and when
theyfalldue.

On the basis of cash flow information prepared by the Directors and after
consultation with its shareholders, the Directors consider that the Group will
continue to operate for the foreseeable future within the available financial
resources. Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that the preparation of
thesefinancial statementsonthegoingconcern basisisappropriate.

Basisof Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Companyandits 100% subsidiary. Controlisachieved whenthe Company:

has powerovertheinvestee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

hastheabilitytouseits powerto affectitsreturns.

48



Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notestothefinancial statements (continued)

3

(c)

Summaryof significantaccounting policies (continued)
Basisof Consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstancesindicatethatthere are changestoone ormore ofthethree elements
of controllisted above.

Whenthe Companyhaslessthanamajority ofthevotingrightsofaninvestee, ithas
power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group’svotingrightsinaninvestee are sufficienttogiveitpower,including:

the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersionofholdingsofthe othervote holders;

potentialvotingrights held bythe Group, othervote holdersorotherparties;
rightsarisingfromothercontractualarrangements;and

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or
does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date
whenthe Companyceasestocontrolthe subsidiary.

Profitorlossand each componentofothercomprehensiveincomeare attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests havingadeficitbalance.

When necessary, adjustments are made tothefinancial statements of subsidiaries
tobringtheiraccountingpoliciesintoline withthe Group’saccounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows

relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notestothefinancial statements(continued)

3

(c)

(d)

Summaryof significant accounting policies(continued)
Basis of Consolidation (continued)
Changesinthe Group’sownershipinterestsinexistingsubsidiaries

Whenthe Group loses controlof asubsidiary, again orlossisrecognisedin profitor
loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiaryand any non-controllinginterests. Allamounts previously recognisedin
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fairvalue of anyinvestmentretained
inthe former subsidiary atthe date when controlis lostis regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when applicable,
the costoninitialrecognition ofaninvestmentinanassociate orajointventure.

Revenuerecognition

The Companyrecognises revenue fromthefollowingmajorsource;
Saleofgoods

Saleof copperrod,wireand cable

The Company sells goods to both third party and related customers. Revenue is
recognised when the Company has fulfilled its performance obligations based on
the sales order, being at the point when goods are delivered at the customer's
premises for CIF sales, while for FOB sales the performance obligations are
performed once the goods are collected from Zamefa Plc premises. Revenue on
the sale of these goods is measured at the effective selling price of the items sold
net of value-added tax (VAT) after subtracting discounts and rebates granted to
customers. For contracts that permit returns, rebates or discounts, revenue is
recognised only to the extent thatitis highly probable that a significant reversal of
revenue will not occur as a result of such items. Payment of the transaction priceis
duewithinfortyfive (45) calenderdaysafterthedeliveryofthe goods.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measuredreliably.

Interestincomeisaccruedonatimebasis, byreferencetothe principal outstanding
and atthe effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset’s net
carryingamountoninitial recognition.
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
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(f)

Summaryof significant accounting policies(continued)
Foreigncurrencies

In preparing financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the
Zambian Kwacha are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
thetransactions. Attheend of each reporting period, monetaryitems denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated atthe rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
arenotretranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the
periodinwhichtheyariseexceptfor:

exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets
under construction forfuture productive use, which areincluded inthe cost of
those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
thoseforeign currencyborrowings;

exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain
foreigncurrencyrisks;and

exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the netinvestment in foreign operation), which are
recognized initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equityto profitorlossonrepaymentofthe monetaryitems.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations are performed at least every five years such that the carrying
amounts do not differ materially from those that would be determined using fair
valuesattheendofeachreporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such buildings is recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously expensed. A
decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and
buildings is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held in the properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
thatasset.
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(f)

Summaryof significant accounting policies(continued)
Property, plant and equipment(continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees that are capitalized in accordance with Company’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plantand equipmentwhen completed and ready forintended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assetsarereadyforintended use.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is recognized in the profit and loss. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings. Leasehold landisnotdepreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulatedimpairmentlosses.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other
than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values
overtheirusefullives, usingthe straight-line method asfollows:

Buildings 50Years
Plantand machinery 10Years
Furniture, fixturesandfittings 4-10years
Motorvehicles 4 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accountedforonaprospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plantand equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
andthecarryingamountofthe assetandisrecognizedin profitorloss. Ondisposal
of revalued assets, amounts in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are
transferredtoretained earnings.
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(h)

Summary of significant accounting policies(continued)
Property, plant and equipment(continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amountofthe assetis estimated in orderto determine the extent of the impairment
loss, ifany.

Recoverable amountisthe higher of fair value less costs to selland value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. If the
recoverableamountofanassetisestimatedto be lessthanitscarryingamount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Animpairment
loss is recognised immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluationdecrease.

Whereanimpairmentloss subsequently reverses, the carryingamountofthe asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Areversalonimpairmentlossisrecognisedimmediatelyinthe profitorloss,
unlesstherelevantassetis carried atarevalued amount, in which casethe reversal
oftheimpairmentlossistreated asarevaluationincrease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity), but excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price in the
ordinarycourseofbusiness, lessthe costsof completionand sellingexpenses.

Financial instruments

Financialassetsandfinancialliabilitiesare recognisedinthe Company’s statement
of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisionsoftheinstrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediatelyin profitorloss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies(continued)
Financial instruments(continued)
() Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on atrade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established byregulation orconventioninthe marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Classification offinancial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently
at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financialassetsinordertocollectcontractual cashflows; and

the contractualterms ofthe financial assetgive rise on specified datesto cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amountoutstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value
through proflt or loss (FVTPL). Despite the foregoing, the Company may make the
followingirrevocable election/designation atinitial recognition ofafinancial asset:

the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain
criteriaaremet; and

the Company may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the
amortised cost criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reducesanaccountingmismatch.

(a) Amortisedcostandeffectiveinterestmethod

Theeffectiveinterestmethodisamethod of calculatingthe amortised costofadebt
instrumentand of allocating interestincome over the relevant period. For financial
assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e.
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is
theratethatexactlydiscountsestimated future cashreceipts (includingallfeesand
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future
cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt
instrumentoninitial recognition.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments(continued)

() Financial assets(continued)

(a) Amortisedcostandeffectiveinterestmethod (continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial assetis the amortised cost of a
financialassetbeforeadjustingforanylossallowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt
instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost. For financial assets other
than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
ratetothe amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

(b) Credit-impairedfinancialassets

Afinancialassetiscredit-impaired whenone ormoreeventsthathave adetrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
thefollowingevents:

significantfinancialdifficulty oftheissuerorthe borrower;
abreachofcontract, suchasadefaultorpastdueevent;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to
the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s)thatthelender(s)would nototherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financialreorganisation;or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financialdifficulties.

The Group may write off a financial asset when there is information indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the trade
receivables has crossed the law of limitation period past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Anyrecoveriesmadearerecognisedin profitorloss.
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Summaryof significant accounting policies(continued)
Financial instruments(continued)

() Financial assets(continued)

(c)] Measurement and recognition ofexpectedcreditlosses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is adefault) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
describedabove.

Asforthe exposure atdefault, forfinancial assets, thisis represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with
any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date
determined based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the
specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

Forfinancialassets, the expected creditlossis estimated asthe difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contractand all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at
theoriginaleffectiveinterestrate.

The Companyrecognisesanimpairmentgain orlossin profitor loss forall financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
lossallowanceaccount.

(d) Derecognitionof financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially allthe risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Company neithertransfers norretains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownershipandcontinuestocontrolthetransferred asset, the Companyrecognises
its retained interestin the assetand an associated liability foramounts it may have
to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
assetandalsorecognisesacollateralised borrowingforthe proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
betweentheasset’scarryingamountandthe sumofthe considerationreceivedand
receivableisrecognisedin profitorloss.

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitionsofafinancialliabilityand anequityinstrument.
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Summary of significant accounting policies(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)  Financial liabilities and equity(continued)

(a) Equityinstruments

Anequityinstrumentisany contractthatevidencesaresidualinterestinthe assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Companyarerecognised atthe proceedsreceived, netofdirectissue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrumentsis recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale,issueorcancellation ofthe Company’sown equityinstruments.

(b) Financialliabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the
effectiveinterestmethodorat FVTPL.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (includingallfees and points paid or received thatformanintegral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, totheamortised costofafinancialliability.

(c) Foreignexchangegainsandlosses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are
measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the ‘other
gainsand losses’lineitemin profitorloss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is
determinedinthatforeign currency and translated atthe spotrate atthe end of the
reportingperiod.

(d) Derecognitionoffinancialliabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference

between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paidand payableisrecognisedin profitorloss.
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Summaryofsignificantaccountingpolicies (continued)
Employeebenefits
Retirementbenefitcostsand termination benefits

The Company and all its employees contribute to the National Pension Scheme
Authority (NAPSA), which is a defined contribution scheme. The Group’s
contributions to the defined contribution schemes are charged to the profit or loss
inthe yeartowhichtheyrelate. Adefined contribution planisapension planunder
which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company
has nolegal or constructive obligations to pay further contributionsifthe fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
serviceinthecurrentand prior periods.

The Company also operates a staff gratuity scheme for its employees. Under this
scheme, the employees are entitled to gratuity payment based on the number of
yearsworked and theirterminalsalaries atend of contract. The liability recognised
in the statement of financial position in respect of the gratuity scheme is the past
service costthatthe Companywould haveincurred atthereportingdate.

Share-based payments

The Reunert group issues equity-settled options to certain employees in the
Group. Equity-settled share-based paymentsare measured atfairvalue atthe grant
date. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
paymentsisexpensedonastraight-line basis overthe vesting period, based onthe
group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settledemployee benefitsreserve.

Fair value is measured by use of a modified binomial option pricing model. The
expected livesusedinthe model have been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behaviouralconsiderations.

Incometax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differsfrom ‘profitbefore tax’ as reported in the statement of profitor loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted orsubstantivelyenacted bythe end ofthe reporting period.
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Summaryofsignificant accounting policies (continued)
Incometax(continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized foralltaxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognizedforalldeductible temporary differencestothe extentthatitis
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (otherthaninabusiness combination) of otherassetsand liabilitiesina
transactionthataffects neitherthetaxable profitnorthe accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised on surpluses arising from the revaluation of
property, plantandequipment.

Deferredtaxliabilities and assets are measured atthe tax ratesthatare expected to
applyinthe periodinwhichtheliabilityis settled orthe assetrealised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
thereportingperiod.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at
theend ofthereporting period, to recover or settle the carryingamount of its assets
andliabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilitiesonanetbasis.

Currentanddeferredtaxfortheyear

Currentand deferred tax are recognised in profitor loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effectisincludedintheaccountingforthe businesscombination.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal and constructive
obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
andareliableestimate oftheamountoftheobligation can be made.

59



Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3
)

(n)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effectofthetimevalue of moneyismaterial).

Capitalandreserves

(i) Sharecapital

Ordinarysharesareclassified asequity.

(ii) Equityloan

The terms of the loan now make it a non-monetary item and as such, it is not
revalued to period end exchange rates rather, the loan remains revalued at the
exchangeraterulingonthedatewhenitwasconvertedtoanequityloan.

(iii) Revaluationreserve

The surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in other comprehensive income. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred directly to
retained earnings. No transfer is made from the revaluation to retained earnings
exceptwhenanassetisderecognised.

(iv) Sharebasedoptionreserve

Refertonote3(j)

(v) Foreigncurrencytranslationreserve

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the
Company’s subsidiary based in South Africa from their functional currencies to the
entity's presentation currency (i.e. Zambian Kwacha) are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

Borrowingcosts

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of

timetogetreadyfortheirintended use orsale, areaddedtothe costofthose assets,
untilsuchtimeastheassetsare substantially readyfortheirintended useorsale.
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(a)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing cost (continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costseligibleforcapitalisation.

Allother borrowing costs are recognised in profitor lossin the period in which they
areincurred.

Dividends

Dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are charged to equity in the
period in which they are declared. Proposed dividends are shown as a separate
componentofequityuntildeclared.

Financeleases

Assets subjectto finance lease agreements, where considered materialand where
the group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are
capitalised as property, plantand equipmentatthe loweroffairvalue orthe present
value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease and the
correspondingliabilityisraised.

Lease payments are allocated using the rate implicit in the lease to determine the
lease finance cost, which is charged to profit or loss over the term of the relevant
lease, andthe capital payment, which reducestheliabilitytothe lessor.

Cashandcashequivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with the financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowingsin currentliabilitiesin the
statement of financial position.

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparativesfigures have been adjusted to conformtochanges
in presentationinthecurrentyear.

Financialriskmanagement
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk,
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s overall risk

management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seekstominimise potential adverse effectsonitsfinancial performance.
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Financialriskmanagement (continued)

Risk management is carried out by the management under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. The Board provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-derivative
financialinstrumentsandinvestingexcessliquidity.

Marketrisk
()  Foreignexchangerisk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risks

arising from various currency exposures especially with respect to the United
States Dollarandthe South African Rand.

Foreign Currency exposure

Company Liabilities Assets
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K ‘000 K ‘000 K ‘000
United States Dollar 537,361 463,935 345,763 242,407
South African Rand 10,145 7,117 8,034 4,577

547,506 471,052 353,797 246,984

Foreign Currency exposure

Group Liabilities Assets
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000
United States Dollar 537,361 463,935 342,146 155,764
South African Rand 10,145 7,117 6,763 1,596

547,506 471,052 348,909 157,360

At 30 September 2021, if the Kwacha had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US Dollar with all other variables held constant, post tax loss/profit for the year
for the company would have been ZMW7,558,121 lower/higher (2020:
ZMW9,414,000 higher/lower) and for the Group ZMW7,710,974 lower/higher
(2020: ZMW13,097,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of US Dollar
denominated payables, receivables, bank balancesand borrowings.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i)  Foreignexchangerisk(continued)

At 30 September 2021 if the Kwacha had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the South African Rand with allothervariables held constant, posttax loss/profitfor
the year for the Company would have been ZMW83,385 lower/higher (2020:
ZMW108,000 lower/higher)and ZMW133,582 higher/lower for the Group (2020:
ZMW235,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of Rand denominated trade
payables, receivablesand bankbalances.

(i) Interestraterisk

The Group’s only interest bearing assets are short term bank deposits. The Group
has borrowings at floating rates. At 30 September 2021, an increase/decrease of
50 basis points would have resulted in an decrease/increase in post-tax profit of
ZMW1,968,442(2020:ZMW?2,179,374decrease/increase).

Credit risk

Creditrisk arises mainly from trade and other receivables. The credit risk on liquid
fundsislimited because counter parties are banks with high creditrating. Exposure
to creditriskis managed through trading with customers with an appropriate credit
history, regular review of credit limits and debtors recoverability. The Board of
Directorsisinvolvedinthe review of debtors’ position.

The Group’s maximum exposuretocreditriskat 30 September2021 isasfollows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K ‘000 K‘000 K ‘000
Trade receivables 251,910 175,985 259,481 183,287
Cash and bank balances 41,101 27,761 38,417 25,738
Sundry receivables 1,029 876 1,029 876

294,040 204,622 298,927 209,901
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
The table below analyses the Company'’s financial assets that are receivable on a

net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
statementoffinancial position datetothe contractual maturity date.

Group Company
1 -3 months 1 -3 months
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K ‘000 K‘000 K ‘000
Receivables 252,939 176,861 260,510 184,163
Cash and bank balances 41,101 27,761 38,417 25,738
294,040 204,622 298,927 209,901

Capitalriskmanagement

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paidtoshareholdersorissue newcapital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total funds. Total
debtis calculated as total non current liabilities plus total current liabilities. Total
funds comprises of total equity plus total non current liabilities plus total current
liabilities.

The gearing ratio at year end was asfollows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K ‘000 K‘000 K ‘000

Total liabilities as per statement
of financial position 580,097 496,019 579,848 495,927

Total equity and liabilities
statement of financial position 762,836 626,809 767,723 632,039

Gearing ratio 76.0%  791% _ 755% _ 785%
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Financial risk management (continued)
Capital risk management (continued)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Loans and receivables: Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K ‘000 K‘000 K ‘000

Receivables and cash and
cash equivalents 294,040 204,622 298,927 209,901

Financial liabilities

At amortized cost:

Payables and borrowings 1,052,154 486,844 1,051,869 486,751

Fairvalue measurements

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value (butwherefairvaluedisclosuresarerequired).

Except as detailed in the table below, the Directors consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statementsapproximatefairvalues.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Capital risk management (continued)

Fair value measurements(continued)

Financial assets
Loans and receivables:

Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held at
amortised cost:

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Financial assets

Loans and receivables:
Trade and other receivables
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held at
amortised cost:

Borrowings
Trade and other payables

Company
2021 2020
K ‘000 K ‘000
Carrying Carrying
amount Fairvalue amount  Fairvalue
260,510 260,510 184,163 184,163
148,252 148,252 132,290 132,290
402,920 402,920 340,947 340,947
551,172 551,172 473,237 473,237
Group
2021 2020
K ‘000 K ‘000
Carrying Carrying
amount Fairvalue amount  Fairvalue
252,938 252,938 176,861 176,861
148,252 148,252 132,290 132,290
403,112 403,112 341,040 341,040
551,364 551,364 473,330 473,330
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Financial risk management (continued)

Company
Fair value hierarchy at 30 September 2021
Levell Level2 Level3 Total
K '000 K '000 K '000 K '000
Financial assets
Financial assets held at amortisation cost

Loans and receivables:

Trade and other receivables - 260,510 - 260,510

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held at
amortised cost:

Borrowings - 148,252 - 148,252
Trade and other payables* - 402,920 - 402,920
- 551,172 - 551,172
Company
Fair value hierarchy at 30 September 2020
Level 1l Level2 Level3 Total
Financial assets K '000 K'000 K '000 K '000

Financial assets held at amortisation cost
Loans and receivables:
Trade and other receivables - 184,163 - 184,163

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held at
amortised cost:

Borrowings - 132,290 - 132,290
Trade and other payables* - 340,947 - 340,947
- 473,237 - 473,237

* This excluded statutory obligations PA.Y.E , withholding tax, N.A.P.S.A and skills levy
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Financial risk management (continued)

Group
Fair value hierarchy at 30 September 2021

Levell Level2 Level3 Total
K '000 K '000 K '000 K '000
Financial assets
Financial assets held at amortisation cost

Loans and receivables:

Trade and other receivables - 252,938 - 252,938

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held at
amortised cost:

Borrowings - 148,252 - 148,252
Trade and other payables* - 417,058 - 417,058

- 565,310 - 565,310
Group

Fair value hierarchy at 30 September 2020

Levell Level2 Level3 Total
Financial assets K '000 K '000 K '000 K '000
Financial assets held at amortisation cost

Loans and receivables:
Trade and other receivables - 176,861 - 176,861

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held at
amortised cost:

Borrowings - 132,290 - 132,290
Trade and other payables* - 341,040 - 341,040
- 473,330 - 473,330

* This excluded statutory obligations PA.Y.E , withholding tax, N.A.P.S.A and skills levy.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are
believedtobereasonable underthecircumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions are as follows:
(i) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Zambia and the Republic of South Africa.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on detailed calculations of what tax
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact on the income
taxanddeferredtax provisionsinthe periodinwhich such determinationis made.

(i)  Impairment losses on trade receivables

Impairment losses are based upon historical patterns of losses. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income, the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of trade receivables before a decrease can be
identified with an individual trade receivable in that portfolio. This evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of trade receivables in their group, or local economic conditions
thatcorrelate with defaultsonassetsinthatgroup.

(iii) Estimate of assets lives, residual values and depreciation methods and
impairmentsreview

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful life taking into
account residual values. Useful lives, residual values and carrying amount are
assessed annually. Useful lives are affected by technology innovations,
maintenance programmes and future productivity. Future market conditions
determine the residual values. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis
which may not represent the actual usage of the asset. The carrying amount of the
asset may be sensitive to a range of characteristics and the key sorce of estimation
and uncertainty include cash flow projections. In performing impairment reviews,
the Group asseses the recoverable amount of its assets with reference to fair value
less costs to disposal. There is judgement in determining the assumption that are
considered to be reasonable with those that would be applied by market
participants.
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Analysisofsalesbycategory

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000
Copper rod

Export 1,523,849 628,877 1,523,849 628,877

Wire and Cables
Zambia 479,982 245,377 479,982 245,377
Export 420,475 121,035 420,475 121,035
900,457 366,412 900,457 366,412
Total Sales 2,424 306 995,289 2,424,306 995,289

Includedinsalesarerevenues of approximately ZMW559 million (2020: ZMW124
million) which arose from sales to the Group’s largest customers. No other single
customer contributed 10 percent or more to the Group’s revenue eitherin 2021 or

2020.

Breakdown of expenses by nature

Thefollowingitems have beenchargedinarrivingatoperating profit:

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000

Inventories expensed 2,226,698 875,330 2,226,698 875,330

Inventory write down to net realizable value 2,900 3,300 2,900 3,300

Employee benefits expense (Note 8) 43,483 41,381 43,483 41,381

Loss allowance on trade receivables 15,998 9,550 15,998 9,550

Depreciation on property, plantand

equipment (Note 13) 2,644 2,644 2,644 2,644

Directors’ remuneration - as Managers 5,577 3,633 5,577 3,633

-as Directors 1,486 1,160 1,486 1,160

Auditors’ remuneration and expenses 725 884 725 884

Gifts and donations 29 33 29 33

Other expenses 81,855 55,918 81,806 55,881
Total cost of sales, distribution cost and

administrative expenses 2,381,395 993,833 2,381,346 993,796
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Employee benefits expense

Thefollowingitemsareincluded withinemployee benefitsexpense:

2021
K‘000

Salaries and wages 36,108

Retirement benefits costs:

- Terminal benefits and long service
gratuities (Note 25) 4,582

- National Pension Scheme Authority 2,793

Group Company

2020 2021 2020
K*‘000 K‘000 K‘000

34,615 36,108 34,615

3,767 4,582 3,767
2,999 2,793 2,999

43,483

41,381 43,483 41,381

The number of persons employed by the company at year-end was 299 (2020:

301).

Finance costs

Otherinterest expense (15,870)

Interest on bank overdrafts (5,710)

Interest on loans from related parties

(5,922) (15,870) (5,922

(7,539) (5,710) (7,539)
(20,148) - (20,148

(33,609) (21,580) (33,609)
1 1 1

Finance costs (21,580)
Interestincome 1
Net finance costs (21,579)

(33,608) (21,579) (33,608)
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Incometaxexpense
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000
Company
Currentincome tax - 1 - 1
Deferred income tax (note 24) 13,758 1,427 13,650 1,351
Income tax charge 13,758 1,428 13,650 1,352
Included under current liabilities
Payable in respect of the current year - - - -
Payable in respect of prior years ) 1 - 1
Paid during the year - (1) - (1)
Atend of the year - - - -
Reconciliation of the tax charge
Profit/ (loss) before income tax 65,803 (232,940 65,413 (232,622)
Tax at 35% and 15% 9,870  (34,941) 9,812 (34,893
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes:
Unrecognised deferred tax asset on interest 3,237 26,890 3,237 26,890
Non cash benefits 186 2,226 186 2,226
Other 465 7,253 415 7,129
Income tax charge 13,758 1,428 13,650 1,352

Income tax assessments have been agreed with the Zambia Revenue Authority
(ZRA)uptoandincludingthe yearended 31 December2013. Self-assessmenttax
returns have been filed with ZRA for the subsequentyearends. The Company has
accumulated tax losses of ZMW7.27 million (2020: ZMW37.09 million) which are
available for carry forward up to a maximum period of five years for offset against
future profitsfromthesamesource.
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11

12

Income tax expense (continued)

Tax losses analysis

2015 tax losses to expire in 2020
2015 tax losses expired

2018 tax losses to expire in 2023*
2020 tax losses to expire in 2025

Tax losses carried forward

*K29,812,000was utilisedin2021.

Earnings/(Loss)pershare

Net profit/ (loss) for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

inissue (thousands)

Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss)
pershare (Kwacha)

Dividends

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K*‘000 K‘000 K*‘000
- 8,428 - 8,428
- (8,428) - (8,428)
4,193 34,005 4,193 34,005
3,080 3,080 3,080 3,080
7,273 37,085 7,273 37,085
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K‘000 K‘000 K‘000 K‘000
52,045 (234,368 51,763 (233,974)
27,090 27,090 27,090 27,090
1.92 (8.65) 1.91 (8.64)

At the Annual General Meeting to be held on 22 February 2022, the Directors
propose a dividend payment of Nil per share in respect of the year ending 30
September 2021. Nil dividend was proposed in respect of the period ended 30

September2020
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Property, plant and equipment

Group and Company
Furniture, Capital
Plantand  Motor fixtures& Workin
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment progress Total
K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000

COST OR VALUATION

Balance at30 September2019 132,200 100,669 2,214 6,343 - 241,426
Balance at 30 September2020 132,200 100,669 2,214 6,343 - 241,426
Additions - - - 750 750

Balance at 30 September2021 132,200 100,669 2,214 6,343 750 242,176

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Balance at 30 September 2019 220 100,669 2,214 6,343 - 109,446
Charge for the year 2,644 - - - - 2,644
Balance at 30 September 2020 2,864 100,669 2,214 6,343 - 112,090
Charge for the year 2,644 - - - - 2,644
Balance at 30 September 2021 5508 100,669 2,214 6,343 - 114,734
CARRYING AMOUNT

Balance at 30 September2021 126,692 - - - 750 127,442
Balance at 30 September 2020 129,336 - - - - 129,336

In accordance with Section 246 of the Companies Act, 2017 the Register of Land
and Buildings is available for inspection by members and their duly authorised
agentsattheregistered office ofthe Company.

Freehold land and buildings with a carrying amount of ZMW127 million (2020:
ZMW129 million) have been pledged to secure borrowings of the Group (See note
19). The Group is not allowed to pledge these assets as security for other
borrowingsortosellthemtoanotherentity.
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Property, plant and equipment(continued)

The Company’s leasehold land and buildings are stated at their revalued amounts,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. The revaluation of
the Company’s freehold land and buildings was performed by Bitrust Real Estate
Limited on 1 September 2019, independent valuers not related to the Company.
Bitrust Real Estate are members of the Valuation Surveyors Registration Board,
and they have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the fair value
measurementofpropertiesintherelevantlocations.

The fair value of the leasehold land was determined based on the market
comparable approach that reflects recenttransaction prices for similar properties.
The Directors have carried outan assessmentofthefairvalue of leaseholdland and
buildings at year end, taking into account the most recent independent
valuation. The fair values determined are not materially different from the
amounts disclosed.

Therehasbeennochangetothevaluationtechniqueduringtheyear.

At 30 September 2021

Level 2 Level3 FairValueas at

30-09-2021

K'000 K'000 K'000

Land and Buildings - 126,692 126,692
At 30 September 2020

Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value as at

30-09-2020

K'000 K'000 K'000

Lands and Buildings - 129,336 129,336

In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts at which the property, plant and
equipmentare stated are notin excess ofthose recoverable from their future use. If
the buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as
follows:

2021 2020

K'000 K'000

Cost 14,718 14,718
Accumulated depreciation (2,968) (2,674)
11,750 12,044
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14.

15

Property, plant and equipment(continued)

Sensitivity analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is performed to measure
favorable and unfavorable changes in the fair value of PPE which are affected by
unobservable parameters. When the fair value is affected by more than two input
parameters,theamountsrepresentthe mostfavorable ormostunfavorable.

Valuation techniques

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

Sensitivity

Leasehold land and
buildings

Depreciated
replacement method

Depreciation factor,
consideringthe
nature of property
and prevailing market
condition.

Aslightincrease in the
depreciation factor
used would resultina
significant decrease
in fair value and vice
versa.

Monthly market rate,
taking into accountthe
differencesin location,
and individual factors,
such asfrontage and
size, between the
comparable and the

property.

Aslightincreasein
the market rent used
would resultina
significantincrease
in fairvalue, and vice
versa.

Capitalcommitments

Asat30September2021, there were no Capital commitments contracted but not provided
forinthefinancial statementsforthe Groupand Company.

Inventories
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000
Finished goods 98,524 73,419 98,524 73,419
Raw materials 53,966 26,034 53,966 26,034
Work in progress 36,976 42,048 36,976 42,048

Engineering stores and
indirect materials 36,358 39,915 36,358 39,915
225,824 181,416 225,824 181,416

The costofinventories expensed during the yearis as disclosed under Note 7. The
cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes ZMW2.9 million(2020:
ZMW3.3million)inrespect of write-downs of inventory to netrealisablevalue.
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Tradeandotherreceivables

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000
Third party trade and Other receivables 316,255 224,301 316,255 224,301

Amounts due from related companies - 31 7,571 7,333

(Note 28)

Expected credit loss allowance (64,345) (48,347) (64,345) (48,347)
251,910 175,985 259,481 183,287

VAT recoverable 105,794 97,388 105,794 97,388

Prepayments 9,737 6,429 9,737 6,429

Sundry receivables 1,029 876 1,029 876

368,469 280,678 376,040 287,980

The following shows the movement recognised and other receivables in
accordancewiththesimplifiedapproachsetoutinIFRS9:

Analysis of movement inexpected credit loss allowance

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000
Balance as at start of the year 48,347 38,797 48,347 38,797
Raised during the year 15,998 9,550 15,998 9.550
At end of the year 64,345 48,347 64,345 48,347

The average credit period on sale of goods is forty five (45) days. No interest is
chargedonthetradereceivables.

The Company always measure the loss allowance for trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are
estimated using provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the
debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for
factorsthatare specifictothe debtors, generaleconomic conditions of theindustry
in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions atthe reporting date. The entity has recognised an
expected credit loss allowance of 2.287% againstallthird party receivables as at
yearend.
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Trade and other receivables(continued)

There has been no changes in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptionsmadeduringthecurrentreporting period.

The following table shows the total receivables as per each aging bracket and the
expectedcreditloss.

30-Sep-21 Current 30days 60days 90days Over90days Total

K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000
219,918 31,055 2,992 4,332 57,958 316,255

Expected credit
loss rate 2.287%
Lifetime ECL 7,231

30-Sep-20 Current 30days 60days 90days Over90days Total

K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000
185,400 20,566 2,568 5,488 10,279 224,301

Expected credit
loss rate 2.515%
Lifetime ECL 5,642

The Directors believe that the carrying value of trade and other receivables
approximatestheirfairvalue.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised
fortrade and other receivables in accordance with the simplified approach set out
inlFRS9.

Collectively Individually

assessed asssessed Total

K'000 K'000 K'000

Balance as at 1 October 2019 (5,143) (33,654) (38,797)
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (499) (9,051)  (9,550)
Balance as at 30 September 2020 (5,642) (42,705) (48,347)
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (1,589 (16,936) (18,525)
Amounts recovered - 2,527 2,527
Balance as at 30 September 2021 (7,231) (57,114) (64,345)

78



Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

17 Cashand cashequivalents Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K '000 K'000 K '000 K'000
Bank balances
40,972 27,672 38,288 25,649
Cash on hand 129 89 129 89
Cash and bank balances 41,101 27,761 38,417 25738
Bank overdraft (Note 19) (148,252) (132,290)  (148,252)  (132,290)

Net Cash and cash equivalents (107,151) (104,529) (109,835) (106,552)

Forthe purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cashandbankbalancesnetofbankoverdraftsasabove.

Bankbalancesare heldin United States Dollars, South African Randsand Zambian
Kwacha currentaccountsand donotearninterest.

18 Contractliabilities, tradeand otherpayables
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000

RMB payable 366,095 224,079 366,095 224,079

Third party trade payables 21,023 81,907 20,832 81,815

Accrued expenses and other payables 16,729 28,577 16,729 28,577

Contract liabilities 13,946 13,514 13,946 13,514
Inter-Company payable 757 7,584 757 7,584

418,550 355,661 418,359 355,569

Contract liabilities represent customer payments received in advance of the
delivery of copper cables that are expected to be recognised as revenue in the
financialyearending30September2022.

The carrying amount of the payables and accrued expenses approximate to their
fairvalues. Third party trade payables are mainly made up of United States Dollars
denominated payables arising from purchase of copper cathodes and other direct
materials. Certain payables of coppercathode purchases attractinterestatfloating
rates.
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Secured-at amortised cost
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K'000 K'000 K'000

(i) Bank overdraft (note 17) 148,252 132,290 148,252 132,290

Unsecured — atamortised cost

(ii) Reunert Finance Company Proprietary Limited

At start of the year - 262,006 - 262,006
Exchange losses - 102,994 - 102,994

Capitalised amount - (365,000) - (365,000)

Balance atend of the year

The Company has overdraft facilities with ABSA Bank Zambia Plc of USS$3.5
million (2020: USS3.5million) and Rand Merchant Bank Limited (RMB) of US$40
million (2020: USS30 million) respectively. The ABSA Bank Zambia Plc overdraft
facility is secured against a floating debenture covering all the Company's assets
and a mortgage over property on PlotNo. 1400 Luanshya while the one from Rand
Merchant Bank Limited is secured by a parent company guarantee from Reunert
Limited. The overdraft facility for ABSA Bank Zambia Plc carries interest at 2.75%
plus 3 months Libor per annum whereas that from Rand Merchant Bank Limited of
USS40millioncarriesinterestat1 week LIBOR plus 3.05% perannum.

The equity loan from Reunert Finance Company Proprietary Limited is
denominated in United States Dollars and repayable in part or fully when the
Companydeterminesthatitisableto make such payment, havingdueregardtothe
solvencytestspecifiedinthe Companies Act, No.100f 2017 of Zambia. Intereston
theloanis payableatzeropercent.

20 Share capital
2021 2020
K'000 K'000
Authorised:
150,000,000 (54,400,000 :2020) ordinary shares of K0.01 each 1,500 1,500

Issued and fully paid:

27,090,099 ordinary shares of K0.01 each 271 271
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22

Revaluationsurplus

The revaluation surplus represents the surplus on the revaluation of buildings net
ofdeferredincometaxandisnon-distributable.

Share-based paymentreserves

Asaresult of IFRS 2-Share-based payment

2021 2020
K'000 K'000

Atthe beginning of the year 208 208
Share option reserve arising on the expensing of executive share options - -
Atthe end of the year 208 208

Share-based payment-non current

At the beginning of the year 404 404
Share option reserve reversed during the year 404 404
Atthe end of the year - -

Share-based payment - current

Atthe beginning of the year 818 818
Share option reserve reversed during the year 818 (818)
Atthe end of the year - -

ConditionalSharePlan

Options to take up Reunert ordinary shares at a strike price of R nil are granted to
executives in terms of the Conditional Share Plan (CSP) introduced in 2012. Two
broad schemes exist, a performance scheme, granted only to selected senior
executives and specialist (key) employees. Senior executives were granted
retention optionsforthefirsttimein November2014.

The measurementcriteriaforthe performance schemeareanequalcombination of
real growth in NHEPS and total shareholder return. These performance units vest
afterfouryearsfromthedateofissue.

No performance conditions are attached to the retention options. 50% of the
retention optionsissued from November 2013 vestafterfour yearsfromthe date of
issueandtheremaining50% afterfive years.

Thefairvalue of retention shares granted to employeesis measured by use of a log

normal method and the fair value of the performance shares granted to senior
executivesisvalued usingabespoke Monte Carlo simulation model.
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Share-based payment reserves (continued)

Fairvalue Numberof | Units granted | Units vested Units expired/
peruniton units unvested during the duringthe | forfeited during
inception | atthe beginning year year the year
of the year
2021
K '000' K'000' K'0OOO'" K '000' K '000
Issued on 21 November
2016 (2016)
Key - retention 49.57 4 - - - 4
Issued on20 November
2017 (2017)
Key - retention 47.21 5 - - - 5
Issued on 20 November
2018 (2018)
Executive - retention 59.25 4 - - - 4
13 - - - 13
2020
Issued on 21 November
2016 (2016)
Key - retention 49.57 4 - - - 4
Issued on 20 November
2018 (2018)
Key - retention 47.21 5 - - - 5
Issued on 20 November
2017 (2017)
Executive - retention 59.25 4 - - - 4
13 - - - 13

The fair value of the CSP for key employees and executives with retention options
was calculated by assuming the share price movement follows a log-normal
distribution over the vesting period. The value at vesting date was discounted back
to the valuation date. The fair value of the CSP for executive employees with
performance conditions was calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation technique.
The volatility of the return on the company share was estimated as the annualised
standard deviation of daily log returns of the share price over the four years priorto
thevaluationdate. Noforfeitureswere usedinthe models.
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22 Share-based payment reserves (continued)
Theinputsintothe madels wereasfollows:
P WS price Expecteg\l%xpected Expected Risk free
atissue  volatility option life dividend yield interest rate
R % Years % %
Conditional share plan
2012
Retention
Performance
2016
H Theriskf forthe ki d i
Retention 6150  24.37 4/5 539  [herskicernelortneleyondercauive
7.88% (year 5) and is and is based on the
Performa nce 61.50 24.37 4 5.39 ZAR zero couponswap curve produced by
BESAon 21 November2016
2017
Retention 65.46 2296 4/5 7.28 Theriskfreerate forthe keyand executive
options varies from 7.22% (year 1) to
Pe[—formance 65.46 22.96 4 7.28 8.04% (year 5) and is and is based on the
: . ) ZAR zerocoupon swap curve produced by
BESAon 20 November2017
2018
Retenti 76.58 23.93 4/5 5.79 Theriskfreerate forthe keyand executive
etention . . . options varies from 7,19% (year 1) to
7,90% (year 5) and is and is based on the
ZAR zero coupon swap curve produced by
BESAon 20 November 2017and is based
on the ZAR zero coupon swap curve
producedbyBESAon19November2018
23 Subsidiaries

Details of the Group’s material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as

follows; Proportion of
ownership interestand
voting power held by
Name of subsidiary Principal activity Place of operation  the Group

Fabcorp Proprietary Limited Sale of Copper Rod  South Africa 100%

Fabcorp Proprietary Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Metal Fabricators of
ZambiaPlc.
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24

Deferredtax

Deferredtaxiscalculated usingtheenactedincometaxratesof 35%and 15%.

The following are major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group
and Company and the movement thereon, during the year and prior reporting

periods:
Deferred tax

Company

Yearended 2021

Deferred tax
Property, plantand equipment:
-on historical cost basis

-on revaluation surpluses

Deferred tax assets
Unrealised exchange (losses)/gains
Provisions

Tax losses

Net deferred tax (asset)/ liability

Year ended 2020

Deferred tax
Property, plantand equipment:
-on historical cost basis

-on revaluation surpluses

Deferred tax assets
Unrealised exchange (losses)/gains

Provisions

Tax losses

Net deferred tax asset

At01.10.2020

Recognisedin
profitor loss

At30.09.2021

K'000 K'000 K'000
(740) (293) (1,033)
17,496 - 17,496
16,756 (293) 16,463
(130) 9,847 9,717
(18,634) (376) (19,010
(5,561) 4,472 (1,089
(24,325) 13,943 (10,382)
(7,569) 13,650 6,081

At01.10.2019

Recognisedin
profit or loss

At30.09.2020

K'000 K'000 K'000
(507) (233) (740)
17,496 - 17,496
16,989 (233) 16,756
28 (158) (130)
(11,986) (6,648 (18,634)
(13,951) 8,390 (5,561)
(25,909) 1,584 (24,325)
(8920) 1,351 (7,569)
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24

Deferredtax(continued)

Deferred income tax

Group
Recognised in
Year ended 2021 At01.10.2020 profit or loss At30.09.2021
K’000 K’000 K’000
Deferred tax
Property, plantand equipment:
-on historical cost basis (740) (293) (1,034)
-on revaluation surpluses 17,496 - 17,496
16,756 (293) 16,462
Deferred tax assets
Unrealised exchange (losses)/gains (130) 9,847 9,717
Provisions (18,634) (358) (18,992)
Tax losses (5,610) 4,562 (1,048)
(24,374) 14,051 (10,323)
Net deferred tax (asset)/ liability (7,618) 13,758 6,139

Recognisedin

Year ended 2020 At01.10.2019 profit or loss At30.09.2020
K'000 K'000 K'000
Deferred tax
Property, plantand equipment:
-on historical cost basis (507) (233) (740)
-on revaluation surpluses 17,496 - 17,496
16,989 (233) 16,756
Deferred tax assets
Unrealised exchange (losses)/gains 28 (158) (130)
Provisions (11,986) (6,648) (18,634)
Tax losses (14,076) 8,466 (5,610)
(26,034) 1,660 (24,374)
Net deferred tax asset (9,045) 1,427 (7,618)
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25 Retirement benefit obligations

At start of the year
Charged to profit or loss (Note 8)
Payments during the year

At end of the year

Analysed as:

Non-current
Current
Total

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K’000 K'000 K’000
6,846 6,112 6,846 6,112
4,582 3,767 4,582 3,767
(4,272) (3,033) (4,272) (3,033)
7,156 6,846 7,156 6,846
2,227 2574 2,227 2,574
4,929 4272 4,929 4,272
7,156 6,846 7,156 6,846

These obligations are accruals for gratuity which are calculated in accordance with
EmploymentCodeAct,No.30f20190ofZambia.

26 Cash generated from operations

Reconciliation of profit/ (loss) before income tax to cash generated from

operations:

Profit/ (loss) before income tax

Adjustments for:

Interestincome (Note 9)

Interest expense (Note 9)

Depreciation (Note 13)

Increase in provision for doubtful debts (Note 16)
Increase in retirement benefit obligations
Exchange loss on long term loan ( Note 19)
Changes in working capital

-trade and other receivables

-inventories

-trade and other payables

Share based options- Non Curent

Share based options- Curent

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve movement

Cash generated from operations
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2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K’000 K'000 K’000
65,803 (232,940) 65,413 (232,622)

1) (1) 1) (1)
21,580 33,609 21,580 33,609

2,644 2,644 2,644 2644

15,998 9,550 15,998 9,550
310 734 310 734
102,993 102,993
(103,789) 121,468 (104,058) 120,056
(44,408)  (58,124) (44,408) (58,124
62,888 67,668 62,790 67,641
(404) (404)
(818) (818)
(96)  (1,180)
19,707 46,421 19,046 46,480
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27

28

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has various pending legal proceedings at 30 September 2021. The Directors
believe that there will be no material losses arising from the pending legal proceedings
againstthecompany.

Related party transactions

The Company is a subsidiary of Reunert International Investments, a company
incorporated in the Mauritius. The ultimate parent of the Company is Reunert Limited, a
company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa and listed on the Johannesburg
Stock Exchange.

The Company hastransacted with thefollowingrelated Group companies:

Name of related party Country of registration Relationship
Reunert Limited Republic of South Africa Ultimate Parent
Reunert International Investiments (Mauritius) Mauritius Parent

Limited

CBi-Electric: African Cables Republic of South Africa Fellow subsidiary
BICC-CAFCA* Zimbabwe Fellow subsidiary
CBl-electric: ATC Telecom Cab Republic of South Africa Fellow subsidiary
Reunert Finance Company Limited Republic of South Africa Fellow subsidiary
Reunert Management Services Republic of South Africa Fellow subsidiary

Purchase of goods and services

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K'000 K'000 K’000

CBi-Electric: African Cables - Purchase of finished

goods, raw materials and plantand machinery 99,923 76,508 99,923 76,508
Reunert Finance Company proprietary Limited:
Interest cost on loan (Note 9) - 20,147 - 20,147

99,923 96,655 99,923 96,655

BICC-CAFCA was a related party upto 31 March 2021 .*
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28 Related party transactions (continued)
(i) Sale of goods and equipment
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K'O00 K'000 K '000
CBI Electric-African Cables 18 63,962 18 63,962
CAFCA (Upto 31stMarch 2021) 4,158 6,586 4,158 6,586
4,176 70,548 4,176 70,548
(iii) Directors interests in theCompany

Asat30September2021 (2020: none), none ofthe of Directors had ashareholding
interestinthe Company, asrecorded onthe Lusaka Securities Exchange:

2021 2020
Total ordinary issued shares of the company 27,090,099 27,090,099
(iv) Directorsremunerationand keymanagementpersonnelcompensation

Alistof members of the Board of Directors is shown on page 2 of the Annual Report
underGeneral Companyinformation.

2021 2020
K '000 K '000
Salaries 5,577 3,633
5,577 3,633
Independent Non Executive Directorsremuneration
Analysisis as follows:
Directors fees
JM Chisanga 768 600
CKabaghe 718 561
1,486 1,160

88



Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Notestothefinancial statements(continued)

28

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

29

Related partytransactions (Continued)

Executive Directors annual remuneration

o . 2021 2020
Analysisis as follows: K '000 K '000
Johan duPlessis
Basic salary 2,923 1,719
Otherallowances 266 169
Gratuity 772 260
Total 3,961 2,148
Kangwa D. Bwalya (Appointed 14 September 2021)

Basic salary 73 -
Other allowances 42 -
115 -
Roseta Chabala (Resigned 30 April 2021)
Basic salary 539 857
Other allowances 376 304
Gratuity 586 -
Total 1,501 1,161

Outstandingbalancesarisingfrom purchases ofgoods/services/Intereston Loans

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
K'000 K'000 K'000 K’000
Payables to CBI Electric-African Cables 757 7,584 757 7,584
Outstandingbalancesarisingfrom sale of goods/services
CBI-Electric: African Cables - 31 - 31
Fabcorp (Pty) Limited - - 7,571 7,302
- 31 7,571 7,333
Payable to related parties
Equity loan from Reunert Finance Company
proprietary Limited: (Note 19) 365,000 365,000 365,000 365,000

Eventsafterreportingdate

There were no significant events after the reporting date that require additional

disclosure oradjustmenttotheresults presented.
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Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc

Notice to shareholders

NOTICEOFANNUALGENERALMEETING

Noticeisherebygiventhatthe Annual General Meetingofthe members of Metal Fabricators of
Zambia PLCin respect of the year ended 30 September 2021 will be held at the Radisson Blu
Hotel, Lusaka,Zambiaon 22 February2022at13:30 hourstotransactthefollowingbusiness:-

The proceedingswillalsobe concludedelectronicallyviathe following:
Zoomvideolink provided below.
https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/878931590997?pwd=enZCM25WW jZQQWg1M3hhRWVVNkV

Gdz09

Meeting|D:87893159099
Passcode: 040421

1.

3.1

Minutesofthe previous Annual General Meeting

To consider and adopt the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 11
December2020.

Re-electionof Directors
Resolution 2.1

Resolved that AE Dickson be and is hereby re-elected as a Non-Executive Director
ofthe Company(Refertopage 96 forCV)

Resolution 2.2

Resolved that C Kabaghe be and is hereby re-elected as a Non-Executive Director
ofthe Company(Refertopage 96 forCV)

Resolution 2.3

Resolved that KD Bwalya be and is hereby elected as an Executive Director of the
Company (Refertopage 96forCV)

Resolution 2.4

Resolvedthat LA Corte be and is hereby elected as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company (Refertopage 96forCV)

Non-executive Directors remuneration
“Resolved that the increase of 3.35% in remuneration proposed hereunder in

respect of independent non-executive directors, be and is hereby approved
effectivefrom 1 April 2022.

Currentfee perquarter | Proposed fee per

in USS quarterin USS

Chairman of the Board 3,757 3,883
Chairman of the Audit Committee 3,103 3,206
Otherindependent Non-Executive Directors 2,725* 2,816*

*Notethatthe currentnon-executive directors (otherthantheindependentnon-executive directors)
do not and will not receive any remuneration for their services as directors. In the event that the
board resolves to appoint an additional independent non-executive director, the quarterly fee of
suchadirectorwillnotexceed$ 2,725 upto31 March 2022 where afteritwillincreaseto$2,816.
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3.2

Directors’remunerationforad hocassignments

“Resolved thatthe chairman of the Remuneration Committee is hereby authorised
to exercise discretion to pay additional fees to non-executive directors, of no more
than USD 2 816 (2020: 2705) per director per annum, in the event that any non-
executivedirectorisinvolvedinanadhoccommittee orotherassignmenton behalf
of Zamefathatsignificantly exceedsthe time commitmentstypically required from
non-executive directorsinthe exercise of theirdutiestothe Board and the standing
committees on which they serve. Resolved further that, should the chairman have
an interest in the matter, the above discretion will be exercised by the
Remuneration Committee, excludingtheinterestedindividualorindividuals.”

“The authority granted herewith shall commence on 1 April 2022 and shallendure
until the earlier of a superseding resolution being passed by shareholders, or two
yearsfromthedate of passingofthisresolution.”

INFORMATIONPERTINENTTORESOLUTIONNO3.2

Interms ofthe LUSE Corporate Governance Codefor listed and quoted companies,
directors may not receive fees for their services as directors without prior approval
from shareholders. This constrains the ability of the Board to fairly remunerate
directors for unforeseen matters that arise during the course of the year and that
necessitates significant additional effort from particular directors. The purpose of
this resolution no 3.2 is to provide the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
with limited discretion to pay additional remuneration to independent non-
executive directors, where warranted by the circumstances. In the event chairman
of the Remuneration Committee is being considered for this additional
remuneration, the Remuneration Committee, excluding the individuals
concerned, willexercisethislimited discretion.

Anyremuneration paid to non-executive directors in terms of this resolution no 3.2
will be disclosed to shareholders as required by section 7.B.7 of the LuSE listing
requirements.

Thefeesproposedinthisresolution 3.2islimitedtoservicesasdirectorsand donot
allowfor consultingor other servicesto be provided tothe group. In addition, Board
and Board committee fees do not pertain only to the preparation for and
attendance of meetings, but also assumes that the particular director will be
reasonably available to consider matters that may arise during the course of the
year. The payment of additional fees to non-executive directors can be made only
inlimited circumstances.

Director's Reportand separateand Consolidated Financial Statements
Toreceiveandadopt:
- the Director’s report-Page 21 -33 of the Audited Financial Statements.

- the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2021,
page41-89oftheAudited Financial Statements

- the report thereon of the auditors - Page 35 - 40 of the Audited Financial
Statements

91



Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc

Notice to shareholders (continued)

5. Dividend

Resolved that the Board of Directors proposal not to pay a dividend be approved -
note 12 on page 73 ofthe Audited Financial Statements.

6. AppointmentofAuditors

To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche as the auditors of the Company for the 2022
financialyearandtoauthorisethe Directorstosettheirremuneration.

7. Adoption of Company’s Articles of Association
Resolved that the amended Articles of association which are aligned to the
Company’sof Actof Zambia be approved.

8. OtherBusiness

To transact such other business as may properly be transacted at an Annual
General Meetingof members

Amemberentitled to attend and vote atthe meetingis entitled to appointa proxy to
attend, speak and vote in his/her stead. The proxy need not be a member of the
company. Proxy forms should be forwarded to reach the Company’s registered
office or the Transfer Secretaries not less than 48 hoursbefore the time appointed
forholdingthe meeting.

ByorderoftheBoard

e sttudpubels
O

BDO
CompanySecretary
Lusaka
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CurriculumyvitaeforDirectors standing forre-election

1.

AEDickson

Mr Dickson completed a Masters’degreein Electrical Engineering atthe University
ofthe Witwatersrand. He spentashorttimeinthe consultingengineering fraternity
beforejoining African CablesasaDesign Engineerin1997.

Mr Dickson held several management positions in the organisation before
assuming responsibility for all commercial activity in February 2000. He was
appointed Commercial Director in 2007 a position he held until being appointed
Managing Director in February 2009. Mr Dickson was promoted to Managing
Directorofthe CBl-electricsegmenton 25 October2012.

On 21 November 2013 Mr Dickson was appointed as an executive director of the
ReunertBoard and asthe Chief Executive Officerof Reunerton 1 October2014

CKabaghe

Mr. Kabaghe’s career has bridged multiple worlds — in agri-business, government,
public policy and academia — all at very high levels and with impressively broad
impactinkeyareas. He holdsaBScand MScdegreein Agricultural Economicsfrom
the University of Zambia and London University respectively with more than 25
years’ experience in agricultural policy and agribusiness management and
analysis. He holds several other non-executive directorship positions in a number
ofinstitutions some of which he servesas Chair.

KDBwalya

Mr Bwalya has over 25 years of experience and has held several senior leadership
positions both locally and internationally. He previously worked for ZAMEFA in
various senior positionsincluding Chief Financial Officer @ Company Secretary. At
the time of his departure in 2011, Mr Bwalya was serving as Acting Managing
Director.

Internationally, Mr Bwalya served as CFO for the Asia Pacific region of General
Cable Corporation, among others. He holds an MBA from the University of Essex,
UK, and a B.Acc from the Copperbelt University (Zambia). Mr Bwalya is also a
Fellow of both the ACCA (UK) and the ZICA (Zambia). He was appointed Managing
Director of ZAMEFA and Executive Director on the ZAMEFA Board effective 14
September 2021. Immediately prior to this appointment, Mr Bwalya was the
ManagingDirectorforZAFFICOPLC.

LACorte

Mr. Corte has aBsc. degreein Industrial Electronics Engineering. He has extensive
cable manufacturingexperience which he obtained in various leadership positions
with Phelps Dodge International Corporation, ZAMEFA, General Cable (USA) in
Europe, Africaand DubaiU.A.E.

Currently, Mr. Corte is the Managing Director of CBI Electric, African Cables, a
subsidiaryof ReunertLimited
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Forthe 2021 Annual General Meeting

A=

(Name/s in block letters)

OF (Address)
Number of votes

Being the shareholder/member of the above named
company and entitled to vote

(1 Share =1 vote)

Do hereby appoint

Lo Of or failing him/her

2 Of or failing him/her

3. The Chairman of the meeting

As my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to held at Radisson blu Hotel, Lusaka,
Zambia on 22 February 2022 at 13:30 AM and at any adjournment thereof as
follows:

Agenda item Mark with X where applicable

In favour | Against Abstain

1. Adoption of the minutes of the previous
Annual General Meeting

2. Re-election of Directors
Resolution 2.1
“Resolved that AE Dickson be and is hereby

re-elected as a Non-Executive Director of the Company”

Resolution 2.2
“Resolved that C Kabaghe be and is hereby
re-elected as a Non-Executive Director of the Company”

Resolution 2.3
“Resolved that KD Bwalya be and is hereby
re-elected as an Executive Director of the Company”

Resolution 2.4
“Resolved that LA Corte be and is hereby

re-elected as a Non-Executive Director of the Company”
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Agenda item

Mark with X where applicable

In favour

Against

Abstain

Resolution3.1

Resolved that the remuneration proposed hereunder in
respect of Independent Non-Executive Directors, be and is
herebyapproved effectivefrom 1 April 2022

Currentfee | Proposed fee

per quarter per quarter

in USS in USS

1. Chairman of the Board 3,757 3,883
2. Chairman of the Audit

Committee 3,103 3,206

3. Otherindependent
Non-Exective Directors 2,725* 2,816*

*Note that the current Non-Executive Directors (other than
the independent Non-Executive Directors) do not and will
not receive any remuneration for their services as Directors.
Inthe eventthatthe Board resolves to appointan additional
independent Non-Executive Director, the quartterly fee of
such a Director will not exceed US$2,725 up to 31 March
2022 whereafter, itwillincreasetoUS$2,816.

Resolution3.2

“Resolved that the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is hereby authorised to exercise discretion to
pay additional fees to Non-Executive Directors, of no more
than USD 2816 (2020: 2705) per director perannum, in the
event that any Non-Executive Director is involved in an ad
hoc committee or other assignment on behalf of ZAMEFA
that significantly exceeds the time commitments typically
required from Non-Executive Directors in the exercise of
their duties to the Board and the standing committees on
which they serve. Resolved furtherthat, in the event thatthe
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is being
considered for this additional remuneration, the
Remuneration Committee, excluding the Chairman, will
exercisethislimited discretion.”

4. Toreceiveand adopt:

- theDirector'sreport-page 21 —-33ofthe AFS

- theauditedfinancial statementsforthe period
ended30September2021 - page 41 -89 ofthe AFS

- the report there onof the auditors — page 35-40 of
the AFS.

5. Dividend
Resolved that the Board of Directors proposal not to pay a
dividend be approved-note 12on page 73 ofthe AFS.

6. AppointmentofAuditors

To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche as the auditors of the
company for the 2021 financial year and to authorise the
Directorstosettheirremuneration.

7. Adoption of Company’s Articles of Association
Resolvedthattheamended Articles of association which are
alignedtothe Company’sof ActofZambiabe approved.
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Notes:

Signed at on this day of 2022

Signature

Assisted by me(where applicable) (see note 3)

Full name/s of signatory/ies if signing in a representative capacity

(See note 4)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or
more proxies to attend, speak and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a
memberofthe Company.

Ifthis proxyformisreturned withoutanyindication asto howthe proxyshouldvote,
the proxywill be entitled tovote orabstain from voting as he/she thinksfit.

Aminormustbeassisted by his/herguardian.

The authority of a person signing a proxy in a representative capacity must be
attachedtothe proxyunlessthe Companyhasalreadyrecordedthatauthority.

In order to be effective, proxy forms must reach the registered office of the
Company or the Transfer Secretaries not less than 48 hours from the
commencementofthe meeting.

The delivery of the duly completed proxy form shall not preclude any member or
his/her duly authorised representative from attending the meeting, speaking and
votinginstead of such dulyappointed proxy.

If two or more proxies attend the meeting, then that person attending the meeting

whose name appears first on the proxy form, and whose name is not deleted, shall
beregardedasthevalidlyappointed proxy.
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ZOOMHOUSEKEEPINGRULES

1.

2.

Pleaseensureyouloginwith yourFirstand Lastname.

Shareholder’s audio and video will remain off throughout the meeting to ensure a
smooth meeting.

Please notethatonlythe panelist'svideoswill show

During Questionsand Answertime, you will be able to ask your questionsviaQand
Aicon, members will also be able to vote for their favorite questions to enable to
pickquestionseasily.

To propose a decision please raise your hand using the Hand Icon and do the
sameto second the decision. The Hand raised first shall be the one placed on
record afterconfirmation bythe Auditor.

Questionsshallbereadoutloud.
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